
HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Licensing Sub-Committee (5) 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Thursday 16 December 2021 

   

Time: 
 

 10.00 am 

   

Venue: 
 

 This is a virtual Teams Meeting 

   

Members:  Councillors: 

  Murad Gassanly (Chairman) 
Louise Hyams 
Rita Begum 

   

  If you require further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Sarah Craddock, Committee and Councillor Support Co-
ordinator. 

 

Email: scraddock@westminster.gov.uk  Tel: 0779098018 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 

 
 

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
Regarding Item 2, guidance on Declarations of Interests is included in the Code of 
Governance. If Members and Officers have any questions, they should contact the 
Director of Law before the meeting please. 

 
AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To report any changes to the membership. 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the 
existence and nature of any pecuniary interests or any other 
significant interest in matters on this agenda. 
 

 

 Licensing Applications for Determination 
 

 

1.   CONNAUGHT HOUSE, 1-3 MOUNT STREET, W1K 3NB (Pages 1 - 90) 

 Ward 
CIA* 
SCZ*
* 

Site Name & 
Address 

Application 
Type 

Licensing 
Reference No. 

West 
End 

*  
None 

** 
None 

Connaught 
House 1-3 
Mount Street    
W1K 3NB 

New Premises 
Licence 

21/08517/LIPN 

*Cumulative Impact Area 
** Special Consideration Zone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

 

2.   SHEESH, 70 BROMPTON ROAD, SW3 1ER (Pages 91 - 
192) 

 Ward 
CIA* 
SCZ** 

Site Name & 
Address 

Application 
Type 

Licensing 
Reference No. 

Knights 
bridge 
and 
Belgravia 

*  None 

** None 

Sheesh                
70 Brompton 
Road            
SW3 1ER 

New Premises 
Licence 

21/07425/LIPN 

*Cumulative Impact Area 
** Special Consideration Zone 

 
 

 

 
 
Stuart Love  
Chief Executive 
9 December 2021 
 



 
 

 

In considering applications for Premises Licences under the Licensing Act 2003, the Sub 
Committee is advised of the following: 

Policy Considerations 

The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to the City of Westminster 
statement of Licensing Policy, effective from January 2021. 

Guidance Considerations 

The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to any guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State under Section 182 the Licensing Act 2003.  The most recent version 
was published in April 2018. 

Core hours When Customers Are Permitted to Be on The Premises  

Core hours, as set out in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2021, are when 
customers are permitted to be on the Premises. The maximum opening hours permitted 
will not exceed the start time and terminal hour for each of the days where licensable 
activity is permitted.  

Note: The core hours are for all licensable activities but if an application includes Late 
Night Refreshment, then the starting time for that licensable activity will be 11.00 pm. 

1. Casinos  

Up to 24 hours a day whilst Casino Gaming is permitted by a Premises Licence under 
the Gambling Act 2005.  

2. Cinemas, Cultural Venues and Live Sporting Premises 

Monday to Sunday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

3. Hotels 

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours  
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sale of alcohol to guests for 
consumption in hotel/guest rooms only: Anytime up to 24 hours 

4. Off licences 

Monday to Saturday:  08:00 hours to 23:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 

5. Outdoor Spaces 

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

6. Pubs and bars, Fast Food and Music and Dance venues  

Monday to Thursday:  10:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 



 
 

 

Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 12:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

7. Qualifying Clubs  

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

8. Restaurants 

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

9. Sexual Entertainment Venues and Sex Cinemas 

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item No:   

   

Date:  16 December 2021 

   

Licensing Ref No:  21/08517/LIPN - New Premises Licence 

   

Title of Report:  Connaught House 
1-3 Mount Street 
London 
W1K 3NB 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   

Wards involved:  West End 

   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  

   

Financial summary:  None 

   

Report Author:  Roxsana Haq 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 6500 
Email: rhaq@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 1

Agenda Item 1.



 
 

 
1. Application 

 

1-A Applicant and premises 
 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received date: 1 July 2021 

Applicant: Caprice Holdings Limited 

Premises: Connaught House 

Premises address: 1-3 Mount Street 
London 
W1K 3NB 

Ward: 
 

West End 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

None 

Special 
Consideration 
Zone: 

None 

Premises description: 
 

According to the application this premises intends to 
operate as a restaurant.  

Premises licence history: 
 

This application is for a new premises, and therefore no 
premises licence history exists. However, the application 
follows pre-application advice ref: 20/11124/PREAPM.  
A copy of this report can be found at Appendix 2. 
 

Applicant submissions: As part of the application form, the applicant provided the 
following information: 
“The premises consists of a ground, mezzanine and 
basement floor. The ground floor includes an entrance 
lobby, greeter station, customer seating area, dining 
counter and separate customer lounge including a bar 
servery. The mezzanine floor includes additional customer 
seating areas, a private dining room and storage. The 
basement floor includes a kitchen, WCs and back of house 
areas. There is an external seating area on the ground 
floor.” 
The applicant has provided an operational and pavement 
licence management plan as well as the planning 
permission report which can be found at Appendix 3.  
Furthermore the applicant has submitted a concept 
presentation and  correspondence relating to mediation 
between the applicant and objectors which can also be 
found at Appendix 3. 

Application information During the consultation period the Metropolitan Police 
Service proposed conditions which were agreed by the 
applicant. The Metropolitan Police Service did not submit a 
representation. 

 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 
 

Late Night Refreshment: Indoors, outdoors or both: Both 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 

End: 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day. 

page 2



 
 

 
 
 
 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

Both 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day. 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day. 

Adult Entertainment:  None 

 
2. Representations 

 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health 

Representative: Ian Watson 
 

Received: 
 

21 September 2021  

I refer to the application for a New Premises Licence. 
 
The applicant has submitted floor plans of the premises. This representation is based on 
the plans and operating schedule submitted. 
The applicant is seeking the following: 
 

1. To provide for the Supply of Alcohol ‘On’ and ‘Off’ the premises Monday to Saturday 
between 10.00 and 00.30 hours and Sunday between 10.00 to 00.00 hours. New 
Year’s Eve to New Year’s Day. 

2. To provide Late Night Refreshment ‘Indoors’ and ‘Outdoors’ Monday to Saturday 
between 23.00 and 00.30 hours and Sunday between 23.00 to 00.00 hours. New 
Year’s Eve to New Year’s Day. 

 
I wish to make the following representation 
 
1. The hours requested for the Supply of Alcohol will have the likely effect of causing an 

increase in Public Nuisance within the area. 
2. The hours requested to permit the provision of late-night refreshment will have the 

likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance and impact on Public Safety 
within the area. 

 
The applicant has provided additional information with the application which is being 
addressed.  
 
Should you wish to discuss the matter further please do not hesitate to contact me. 

page 3



 
 

2-B Other Persons 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

Status: Valid In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received:  
 

13 September 2021 

I’m writing as a local resident of over six years to strongly object to the granting of a 
licence for this property to Caprice Holdings Limited. 
I understand the proposals are for a “party style” restaurant at this location, which would 
be wholly inappropriate given its location in a quiet central part of Mayfair. 
 
Sexy Fish for example, has ruined the bottom of Berkley Street where it is located. Serious 
consideration must be given to allowing the same to happen to the corner of the beautiful 
and refined Mount Street. Caprice Holdings is slowly but surely turning Mayfair into a 
circus and some parts must surely be sacred. 
 
(It’s important to note that I am far from old and stuffy – I am 29 years old and in fact 
recently found myself in restaurant/club on Mykonos where Mr Caring from 
Caprice Holdings, was DJing for part of the evening.) 
 
Please do take into consideration the concerns of residents – I understand from my friend 
on Mount Street that her neighbours are also very strongly opposed to this proposal 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:   
  

Status: Valid In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received:  
 

13 September 2021 

Mount Street is a predominantly residential street with some restaurants. There is long 
standing precedent as to limitations on the use of properties in Mount Street for 
entertainment. Granting the application at hand would be in breach of such precedent. For 
example, the Connaught hotel applied for a licence to serve on the pedestrian path, and it 
was only granted until early evening and with the obligation to remove all furniture every 
evening. Similar restrictions apply for the neighbouring restaurants Jamavar and Delfino. 
There would be no justification to grant Caprice Holdings Limited a licence with any further 
rights. The application aims for a similar licence as granted for the Sexy Fish, run by the 
same group as Caprice Holdings Limited. The way Sexy Fish operates in Berkeley 
Square, it should be clear that it is not acceptable for any resident and certainly not in a 
more residential area as Mount Street. The group also runs Georges and Scott's in Mount 
Street which both operate under acceptable restrictions which should also apply for the 
application at hand. Furthermore, the premises at hand have not been used as a 
restaurant before. Therefore, as a neighbour I object against the application. Please also 
note that the applicant has not used the notice form provided for display at the premises. 
 

page 4



 
 

 
Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:   
 

Status: Valid In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received:  
 

21 September 2021 

The licence should be restricted to core hours. The premises is at the junction of two 
residential streets and is not a private members club. 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:   
  

 

Status: Valid In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received:  
 

22 September 2021 

As a resident of  I must strongly object to this application.  
In essence the applicant is seeking to transform what was originally intended to be a 
restaurant into a large scale bar operating in a densely residential area by virtue of the fact 
that the sale of alcohol would not have to be ancillary to a table meal at all until 23:00 and 
beyond that in the ground floor hatched area and private functions. This will no doubt 
strongly increase the risks of public nuisance, crime and public safety in general.  
Needless to say that any future application for longer hours will be strongly objected by 
local residents as it will be seen to further increase the risks of public nuisance, crime and 
public safety in general. 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:   
  

 

Status: Valid In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received:  
 

22 September 2021 

The hours on this application differ from those stated in the planning application which 
were set specifically to protect residential amenity and get the support of the community. 
Now planning permission has been granted this is being changed.  
The proposed hours are outside of core hours.  
It is for these reasons that The Residents' Society of Mayfair & St James's objects to this 
application.  
Please record this as a consult comment. 

page 5



 
 

 
Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:   
 

Status: Valid In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received:  
 

22 September 2021 

I wish to object to this licensing application as it is contrary to Westminster’s core policy. 
The applicant made clear representations to the local community stating that the sale of 
alcohol would be limited to Monday to Saturday 10.00 - 00.00 and Sunday 10.00 - 23.30. 
They now wish to go beyond this. There was also a commitment to a premises license 
restaurant condition that alcohol could not be served without a meal unless people were 
seated at the dining bar. The applicant appears to have reneged on this commitment.  
Without these restrictions in place it is a recipe for an increase in nuisance to residents 
and crime and disorder, as was recently witnessed at the Purdey site on Mount Street.  
Whilst other restaurants may have later hours they are much smaller in scale and have a 
history of being well managed. I think it would be foolish to allow such loose conditions 
when the final proposal for the site is not yet know.  
I urge Westminster to reject this license or at the very least condition it as originally 
proposed by the applicant in their public presentation earlier this year. 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:   
 

Status: Valid In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received:  
 

22 Sep 2021 

The application will cause public nuisance problems. It will change the way of life and 
nature of this Conservation Area and it's character and setting. It's a large restaurant, the 
numbers of covers is going to cause a lot of traffic even of pedestrians. It's on a different 
scale from existing eateries. Add alcohol to the mix, then even taking or embarking from 
taxis and the inevitable greetings and farewells is going to cause disturbance and ruin 
sleeping children's chances. What about the recent Neighbourhood Forum Plan and City 
Plan? This is introducing late hours into a residential area with children and elderly 
residents sleeping early. Granting planning permission was a huge mistake there were 
ample grounds to refuse it. We are now reliant upon the Licensing Committee to mitigate 
that gross error. Is one of the purposes of licensing, not protection of children from harm? 
We cannot reverse the planning, but it should be a restaurant without liquor. There is no 
reason why this should not be so. If there is to be alcohol then it must be with food, not 
served after 10pm, drinking up by 10;30pm this is still late and disruptive for families. I 
understood that for planning the applicants had undertaken no late hours or outside space. 
Licensing Committee knows of problems from private functions also. This licence will 
cause public nuisance. Recent changes to the road outside the premises are confusing 
and dangerous; drunken persons will make a public safety issue. It matters not that the 
application is in line with other premises, this is a different premises extending the spread 
of licensed premises and in close proximity to another group of homes previously 
unaffected. And it's on a different scale. There must be a moratorium on new licences, 
until after a debate with Westminster Council, as it is tearing up Local Plans already. 
Please reject. 
 

page 6



 
 

 
Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:   
 

Status: Valid In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received:  22 September 2021 

 
I strongly oppose the proposal as it currently stands. There are two crucial issues:  
We just realised that the applicant deceived the residents! In the original proposal Caprice 
Holdings promised us that the sale of alcohol will be Monday to Friday: 10:00 - 00:00, 
Sunday 10:00-23:30 . I will forward a copy of this proposal to the licensing team by email 
as I can't upload it here. They are now applying for longer hours! I find this to be really 
disrespectful! This is a very dishonest behaviour! Now, we don't trust Caprice Holdings! 
Therefore, I would like please the licensing team to protect the residents by including all 
the nine conditions below in the license decision letter.  
 
1) Operating hours should be limited to 11.30 pm Mon -Thurs, midnight on Fridays and 
Saturdays, and 10:30 pm on Sundays. In sum, operating hours should not be more 
permissive than Westminster's core hours policy for restaurants. Offering "excess" hours 
will set a negative precedent in our street. All other restaurants are bound to request the 
same treatment, a situation that will only further transform Mount Street from its unique 
residential character to another Berkeley Str. where tawdry commercialism governs and 
which is virtually uninhabitable.  
 
2) We don't want guests to be standing while they are drinking in the "bar" or any other 
areas in the restaurant. all alcohol is by waiter and waitress service to those sitting down. 
Guests should be seated in the bar. Guests should not be allowed to stand. Guests should 
not be allowed to order drinks directly from the bar. Guests shouldn't drink without ordering 
food. We need to make sure this will not (and will never) run as a night club! The same 
rules should apply on the "private dinning room" and on any area inside or outside the 
restaurant (e.g., the outside terrace).  
 
3) the number of seats in the outside terrace should be a maximum of 20 seats.  
 
4) We asked for an explicit written commitment that Caprice Holdings will not apply for:  
- an extension of the opening hours;  
- expanding the size of the terrace;  
- increasing the no of covers;  
- opening the windows;  
- changing the conditions that we agreed upon regarding the bar and private dining room;  
- change any of the conditions in the operational management plan.  
Caprice decided to concede this request. I have a copy of this written commitment and I 
am very happy to forward it to the licensing team. But since we no longer trust Caprice for 
the reason explained at the beginning of this objection, we would like to include such a 
commitment in the licensing decision letter. This request is not unusual as we did 
something very similar in the case of 117 Mount Street.  
 
5) No alcohol should be served without food, including the bar and private dinning room. 
  
6) The number of people smoking outside will be limited to 5 persons" and only in the 
designated area for smokers in Davies Street.  
 
7) Guests should not standing outside waiting their taxis to arrive. They have to wait in the 
waiting area. There should not be any gatherings outside the restaurant. Only the 5 
persons smoking in Davis street are allowed to stand outside, and only in the designated 

page 7



 
 

area for smokers in Davies Street  
 
8) No smoking allowed in the terrace area.  
 
9) Outside tables and seats should be stored inside by 10:30 pm.  
 
The licensing team really needs to impose all the above conditions on the applicant as we 
have seen some awful examples of tawdry commercialism taking over adjacent streets 
(Berkeley St comes to mind as one particular egregious case). 
Let me highlight again that Mount Street needs serious protection from the council to 
protect its residential character. As residents, rather than living in peace and enjoying our 
neighborhood, we have to continue fighting the greed exhibited by outside parties that are 
only out to maximize their profits. Residents are paying the cost of their grabbing hands. 
Enough is enough! 
  

1) The requested hours are not suitable for a residential area such as Mount Street. 
Operating hours should be limited to 11.30 pm Mon -Thurs, midnight on Fridays and 
Saturdays, and 10:30 pm on Sundays. In sum, operating hours should not be more 
permissive than Westminster's core hours policy for restaurants. Offering "excess" 
hours will set a negative precedent in our street. All other restaurants are bound to 
request the same treatment, a situation that will only further transform Mount Street 
from its unique residential character to another Berkeley Str. where tawdry 
commercialism governs and which is virtually uninhabitable.  
 

2) We asked for an explicit written commitment that Caprice Holdings will not apply for:  
- an extension of the opening hours;  
- expanding the size of the terrace;  
- increasing the no of covers;  
- opening the windows;  
- changing the conditions that we agreed upon regarding the bar and private dining room;  
- change any of the conditions in the operational management plan.  
Caprice decided to concede this request. Thus, we would like to include such a 
commitment in the licensing decision letter. This request is not unusual as we did 
something very similar in the case of 117 Mount Street 
 

 
 

page 8



 
 

3. Policy & Guidance 

 
The following policies within the City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 

Policy RNT1 
applies 

A. Applications outside the West End Cumulative Impact 
Zone will generally be granted subject to: 
 
1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, 
PS1, PN1 and CH1. 
2. The hours for licensable activities being within the council’s 
Core Hours Policy HRS1. 
3. The operation of any delivery services for alcohol and/or late 
night refreshment meeting the council’s Ancillary Delivery 
of Alcohol and/or Late-Night Refreshment Policy DEL1. 
4. The applicant has taken account of the Special Consideration 
Zones Policy SCZ1 if the premises are located within a 
designated zone. 
5. The application and operation of the venue meeting the 
definition of a restaurant as per Clause C. 
 
C. For the purposes of this policy a restaurant is defined as: 
 
1. A premises in which customers are shown to their table or 
the customer will select a table themselves to which food is 
either served to them or they have collected themselves. 
2. Which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that 
are prepared on the premises and are served and consumed at a 
table. 
3. Which do not provide any takeaway service of food and/or 
drink for immediate consumption, except if provided via an 
ancillary delivery service to customers at their residential or 
workplace address. 
4. Where alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the 
premises otherwise than to persons who are bona fide taking 
substantial table meals and provided always that the 
consumption 
of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 
5. The sale and consumption of alcohol prior to such meals may 
be in a bar area but must also be ancillary to the taking of such 
meal. 

Policy HRS1 
applies 

Core Hours Policy HRS1 
A. Applications within the core hours set out below in this policy 
will generally be granted for the relevant premises uses, subject 
to not being contrary to other policies in the Statement of 
Licensing Policy. 
B. Applications for hours outside the core hours set out in Clause 
C will be considered on their merits, subject to other relevant 
policies, and with particular regard to the following: 
1. The demonstration of compliance in the requirements 
of policies CD1, PS1, PN1 and CH1 associated with the 
likelihood of the effect of the grant of a licence for later or 
earlier hours on crime and disorder, public safety, public 
nuisance and the protection of children from harm. 
2. If the application is located within a Special Consideration 
Zone they have demonstrated that they have taken account of 
the issues identified in that area and provided adequate 
mitigation. 
3. Whether there is residential accommodation in the proximity of 

page 9



 
 

the premises that would likely be adversely affected by premises 
being open or carrying out operations at the hours proposed. 
4. The proposed hours of the licensable activities and when 
customers will be permitted to remain on the premises. 
5. The proposed hours when any music, including 
incidental music, will be played. 
6. The hours when customers will be allowed to take 
food or drink outside the premises or be within 
open areas which form part of the premises. 
7. The existing hours of licensable activities and the past 
operation of the premises (if any) and hours of licensable 
premises in the vicinity. 
8. Whether customers and staff have adequate access to public 
transport when arriving at and leaving the premises, especially at 
night. 
9. The capacity of the premises. 
10. The type of use, recognising that some venues are more 
likely to impact the licensing objectives than others; for example, 
pubs and bars are higher risk than theatres, cinemas and other 
cultural and sporting venues due to the nature of the operation. 
11. The Licensing Authority will take into account the active 
measures proposed for a ‘winding down’ period including 
arrangements for people to be collected from the premises to 
travel home safely. 
12. Conditions on hours may be attached that require that the 
supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises ceases a 
suitable period 
of time before customers are required to leave the premises. 
13. The council, acting as the Licensing Authority, may reduce 
hours if, after review, it is necessary to impose conditions 
specifying shorter hours in order to promote the licensing 
objectives. 
14. Specific days for non-standard hours should be identified and 
justified as part of the application to allow responsible authorities 
and interested parties to evaluate the impact that these 
licensable activities may have, and to plan accordingly. The 
consideration of applications for later hours for Bank Holiday 
Mondays will take into account that later hours are generally 
granted for preceding Sundays and that the next day is a working 
day. Non-specific days are expected to be covered by Temporary 
Event Notices or variation applications. 
For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the 
premises: 
Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight 
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30 
For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption off the 
premises: 
Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00 
Sundays: 10:00 to 22:30 
For premises for the provision of other licensable activities: 
Monday to Thursday: 09:00 to 23.30 
Friday and Saturday: 09:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09:00 to midnight 
Other Sundays: 09:00 to 22:30 

 

page 10



 
 

4.         Equality Implications 
 

The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to  
its public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In  
summary, section 149 provides that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of  
its functions, have due regard to the need to:  

(a) eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;  
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and  
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristics and persons who do not share it.  

Section 149 (7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines the relevant protected 
characteristics as age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual 
orientation. 
 
 

5.         Appendices 
  

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Pre-App advice report 

Appendix 3 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 4 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 5 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 6 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

page 11



 
 

 
Report author: Roxsana Haq 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 6500 
Email: rhaq@westminster.gov.uk 
 

If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the background 
papers please contact the report author. 
 

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

October 2021 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

April 2018 

4 Environmental Health Representation 21 September 2021 

5 Interested Party Representation 1 13 September 2021 

6 Interested Party Representation 2 13 September 2021 

7 Interested Party Representation 3 21 September 2021 

8 Interested Party Representation 4 22 September 2021 

9 Interested Party Representation 5 22 September 2021 

10 Interested Party Representation 6 22 September 2021 

11 Interested Party Representation 7 22 September 2021 

12 Interested Party Representation 8 22 September 2021 

 
 

page 12



 
 

Premises Plans                 Appendix 1 
 
Basement:

 
 
 

page 13



 
 

Ground Floor: 

 
 
 

page 14



 
 

Mezzanine: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 15



 
 

External Seating 
 

 

page 16



 
 

Pre-Application advice report          Appendix 2 
 

 
 
 

page 17



 
 

 

page 18



 
 

 
 

page 19



 
 

 

page 20



 
 

 
 

page 21



 
 

 
 

page 22



 
 

 
 

page 23



 
 

 
 

page 24



 
 

 
 

page 25



 
 

 

page 26



 
 

Applicant Supporting Documents      Appendix 3 
 
 

Operational Management Plan 
1-3 Mount Street, Mayfair, W1K 2HE 

 
 
Introduction and Overview 
 
Caprice Holdings own and operate several restaurants in and around Mount Street, 
namely Scott’s on Mount St and 34 Restaurant on South Audley St.  We operate these 
successfully, hand in hand with local residents and businesses.  The Management Team 
at the premises, will operate the business to the highest standards to ensure the 
promotion of the Westminster City Council licensing objectives at all times and with key 
consideration for the specific location within Mayfair and the local community. 
The operational management plan identifies the following key areas to be more 
specifically addressed:  

• Capacity and hours of operation; 

• The management of guests arriving and departing; 
• The management of the terrace; 
• People Management; and 
• Deliveries and refuse. 
•  

Capacity and hours of operation 
 

• The property to which the commercial consent relates will only be used as a 
licensed premises servicing predominantly food with a maximum of 260 covers 
including the external terrace. 

• The premises will be operated during the following hours. 
o 10.00am till 12.30am Monday – Saturday. 
o 10.00am till 12.00am on Sunday. 
o The terrace will operate from 10.00am till 10.30pm 7 days a week. 

• This is a licensed premises providing substantial food at all times and will 
predominately operate as a restaurant. 
 

Management of Arrival and Departure of Guests 
 

• One doorman will be employed to control and order guests while entering and 
exiting the premises.  The doorman will man the door during all operating hours.  
All door staff will be SIA registered.   

 
• The role of the door supervisor will be as follows: 

 
o Greet all customers as they approach the premises and open the door for 

them to enter the building. 
 

o Direct all smoking customers to the allocated space for them to use. This 
will be located to the right of the entrance on Davies St. 

o Ensuring all alcohol is consumed on the premises. 
 

o Carefully manage and expedite any transport enquiries and drop-offs. 
 

• The design of the premises will include an area by the reception desk, where 
guests can wait before they are seated.  This will be designed to allow guests to 
enter the building as they arrive to make sure there is no queue on the street.   

page 27



 
 

 
• Upon arrival, all guests will be greeted by the door supervisor.  Once in the 

reception area, guests will be greeted by the Maître D upon arrival and shown to 
their table, including the terrace and private dining area. 

 
• The front door of the premises and the public highway immediately adjacent to 

will be under CCTV surveillance at all times. Access to video evidence will always 
be available to the police in line with the Premises Licence condition. 

 
• The constant presence of our doormen will be a positive addition to Mount Street 

and the surrounding community in many ways. Their presence will help to raise 
the profile of safety and security for residents' homes and vehicles and they assist 
residents and tourists alike with their knowledge of the local area. 

 
• Upon leaving, guests will be encouraged to walk to the taxi rank by the Connaught 

Hotel, or Berkeley Square House. The reception area will be spacious enough for 
any guest to wait for a pre-ordered taxi. 

 
Management of the terrace at Mount St 
 

• The terrace will be set up for service each day with 10 tables and 40 chairs 
between the hours of 10.00am and 10.30pm. 

 
• There are CCTV cameras in the restaurant and on the terrace to cover all 

entry/exit as well as full coverage of the terrace tables.  
 

• Whenever the terrace is in use there is, depending on the level of business, one, 
two or three senior waiters dedicated specifically to manage the outside area. Our 
doorman will also watch over our guests as well as the staff members allocated to 
the terrace. 

 
• We never allow more than 4 customers per table - if a table of 4 tells us that 

another guest wishes to join them we insist on them taking a table inside or 
splitting their party to take two tables outside.  

 
• In the evening, all customers wishing to dine outside are clearly told about our 

10.30pm closing time and it is explained that we will have to seat them inside at 
that point if they wish to continue their evening with us. No one will be permitted 
to sit on the terrace beyond closing time. 

 
• At around 10:00pm each night the manager on duty will assess the status of the 

tables outside to judge who will need to be moved inside. For example, if a table 
has just finished their main course, they will not have time to enjoy dessert 
outside before the closing time. In this situation the manager on duty will speak to 
the customers and oversee the relocating of them to a table inside the premises. 

page 28



  

 
• At 10:20pm the bills are printed for the remaining tables and payments are 

subsequently taken. 
 

• As customers leave the terrace heaters are turned off and the chairs are positioned 
against the tables so they cannot be used. 

 
• The terrace will be regularly cleaned and pavement swept every morning and evening.  

The pavement will also be jet washed every morning. 
 
Deliveries/Refuse 
 

• Caprice Holdings will ensure that all deliveries are kept to a minimum and kept within a 
specific time frame.  The proposed timing for this will be from 7.30am through till 
7.30pm daily.  All deliveries will be supervised by a dedicated staff member to ensure 
they run smoothly and as efficiently as possible.  It is proposed that deliveries to the 
premises will be via the existing car lifts on Carpenter Street. 

 
• The larger food deliveries will be consolidated off site, and in conjunction with other 

restaurants we operate, to reduce the number of deliveries required. 
 

• Each delivery will be allocated a specific time and a dedicated staff member will ensure 
they run smoothly and as efficiently as possible. 

 
• There will be approximately 8-10 deliveries per day and these will range from small vans 

delivering artisan ingredients through to 7.5 ton trucks.   
 

• The delivery vehicles will stop on Carpenter Street and staff will use the existing car lift 
to take all deliveries down to the basement and into the premises. 

 
• We encourage, wherever possible, to receive deliveries in electric vehicles.  

 
• All refuse will be kept within a dedicated waste store at basement level. In the morning, 

30 minutes prior to the agreed collection time, staff will transfer segregated coloured 
waste bags using the adjacent stairs to a presentation area on Mount Street.  Bagged 
waste will be presented at street level within the curtilage of the building and collected 
multiple times per week. 

 
o There will be a total of 8no 240L bins for storage of all waste within the 

premises. These bins will have a drop-front to allow staff to remove sacks from 
the bins for presentation at street level. 

▪ 2 for recycling.  
▪ 3 for residual waste. 
▪ 3 for organic food. 

 
o Additionally, provision of space for the storage of waste cooking oil and glass will 

be provided within the dedicated waste storage at basement level.  These waste 
streams will be collected directly from the waste store by specialist contractors 
on a container swap basis.  The following equipment will be located in the waste 
store: 

▪ 1 waste cooking oil drum. 
▪ 1 glass crusher and 5no 20L stackable storage containers. 

 
 

page 29



  

 
 
 
Noise Management 
 

• The main entrance will be lobbied to provide and noise barrier between the premises 
and outside.  This will minimise any noise break-out externally, as guests enter and exit 
the building. 

 
• The doors to the terrace will also remain closed from 10.00pm daily. 

 
 

• The premises will also be acoustically treated to a very high standard.  We have 
undertaken a noise transmission survey and will form an acoustic box within the ground 
floor unit to separate the restaurant fit-out from the structure of the building.  This will 
remove any noise transmission between our daily activities and the rest of the building. 

 
• Any guest wishing to smoke will be shown to a dedicated smoking area on Davis St 

located past the seating area.  This will be restricted to a maximum of 5 guests smoking 
in this area at any one time. 

 
• We will procure a glass crusher, which will be housed in an acoustic bin area in the 

basement. All bottles will be crushed in our basement, which will prevent any noise and 
disturbance on the street caused when individual bottles are transferred to bins 

 
• Staff will not be permitted to smoke on Carpenter Street, Mount Street or Davies Street. 

Failure to adhere to this will result in a disciplinary process. Staff will be told to smoke in 
Berkeley Square, and they will not be permitted to smoke wearing their work attire. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 30



  

 
 

Ex Porsche Garage, 1-3 Mount Street, London, W1K 3NB 
Pavement Licence Management Plan 

 
Overview 
 
The day-to-day operation of the pavement licence will run to the same high standard operated 
by all restaurants owned by Caprice Holdings Limited. We are committed to offering high levels 
of customer service and standards.  
The pavement licence will further enhance our customers’ visit to the restaurant at this site. 
 
Day to Day Operation 
 
This restaurant will be open to the public from 10:00 hours to 00:30 Monday to Saturday and 
10:00 hours to 00:00 on Sunday. It is our intention to serve food and drink to customers seated 
in the external seating areas throughout our trading hours referred to above; use of the outside 
area for customers will cease at 22.30 hours. 
The orders for food and drinks are taken at the table by restaurant staff and staff bring the 
food and drink out to customers who are seated at all times. Cutlery and meals are delivered to 
the tables and then cleared away by a member of staff once consumed.  
It is part of our operating standards that all empty plates and associated items are cleared 
within 10 minutes of the customer finishing with them. Member of staff are also responsible for 
making sure the area is clean, tidy and free from litter. All members of staff are fully trained in 
Licensing Law, Health & Safety and Service and Standards. They are also trained to monitor 
and report any incidents to the restaurant management team.  
 
Boundaries 
 
It is understood that it is our responsibility to keep customers within the boundary of the area / 
areas permitted and ensure that they do not obstruct the use of the pavement by pedestrians. 
 
Furniture 
 
At 22.30 hours all furniture in the external area will be cleared away and deposited in the 
storage area specifically for the furniture in the basement at the restaurant. 
 
Proposed Hours of Use 
 
It would be our intention to serve food to customers in the external seating area throughout 
opening hours until a terminal hour of 22.30 hours. 
 
Detailed Management Strategy and Security Management Plan 
 
The external seating area will be actively managed by our restaurant staff throughout the hours 
of use of the area.  The external seating area will be entirely table serviced, for all food and 
refreshment orders.  In addition to taking and delivering food and drink orders to/from 
customers, staff will regularly remove all items of crockery, cutlery and drinking vessels that 
customers have finished using, usually within 10 minutes of the customer finishing with these 
items.  All waste, including napkins, would be similarly regularly removed from the external 
seating areas and taken into the restaurant premises for disposal/recycling as required.  Every 
day at the end of the trading period for the external seating area / areas, the restaurant staff 
will clear and clean the pavement/highway area / areas.   

page 31



  

Regular staff presence in and around the external seating areas also manages customer 
behaviour.  Any excessive noise or inappropriate behaviour by customers will be immediately 
challenged by staff.  Similarly, no relocation of any items of furniture by customers will be 
tolerated.  The restaurant staff will be constantly vigilant in observing customer behaviour and 
will ensure that all items of furniture remain within the designated areas.  Any customer 
transgression will be dealt with promptly.  If any customers behaving inappropriately, once 
warned by staff, do not suitably adjust their behaviour accordingly, they will be asked to leave 
the external seating area and the external seating area / areas, and restaurant premises in 
general, in accordance with the restaurant’s established protocol which they operate at all of 
their other sites. 
No amplified music will be played within the external seating area / areas.  There will be no 
external tills at the site. 
Potential noise, disturbance, litter and security in general will all be effectively managed 
throughout the hours of use of the external seating area.  The operation of the external seating 
areas would also be subject to the on-going requirements of the Pavement Licence regime, 
such that Westminster City Council would have continual recourse over the use of the external 
seating area at all times.  The Pavement Licence can be reviewed at any time by Westminster 
City Council if the conditions and requirements of the licence are not being adhered to. 
 
Covid-19 
 
The restaurant are aware of their additional obligations due to the ongoing pandemic and the 
need to comply with government guidance and/or legislation associated with this, including 
social distancing requirements. The external tables and chairs will be placed out in such a way 
that social distancing is complied with, and this will be monitored and enforced by restaurant 
staff.  
The restaurant will continue to comply with social distancing for as long as necessary, but once 
we are out of the pandemic and this is no longer a requirement, they will revert to using the 
external area as is permitted under the planning permission and pavement licence.  
 

28th June 2021. 
 

 
 
 

page 32



page 33



page 34



page 35



page 36



page 37



page 38



page 39



page 40



page 41



page 42



page 43



page 44



page 45



page 46



page 47



page 48



page 49



page 50



page 51



page 52



page 53



page 54



page 55



page 56



page 57



page 58



  

 

 

page 59



  

 

 
 
 

page 60



  

 
 

 

page 61



  

 

 

page 62



  

 

 

page 63



  

 

 

page 64



  

 

 

page 65



  

 

 
 

page 66



  

 

 

page 67



  

 

 

page 68



  

 

 

page 69



  

 

 

page 70



  

 

 

page 71



  

 

 

page 72



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 73



  

Sample Menu 

 

page 74



  

Example Wine List 

 

page 75



  

 

page 76



  

 

page 77



  

 

page 78



  

 

page 79



  

 

page 80



  

 

page 81



  

 
Premises History              Appendix 4 

 
 

There is no licence or appeal history for the premises.

page 82



  

 
Appendix 5 

 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 

page 83



  

less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 

page 84



  

 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 

page 85



  

Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 

9. Except in the hatched areas the supply of alcohol after 23.00 hours shall only be to a 
person seated taking a table meal there and for consumption by such a person as 
ancillary to their meal. 

 
10. The supply of alcohol shall be by waiter/waitress service or bar service only. 

 
11. The consumption of alcohol shall only be by persons seated or those persons 

attending a pre-booked and bona fide private function or event to which members of 
the public are not admitted. 

 
12. Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be 

available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 
on the premises. 

 
13. Alcohol consumed outside the premises building shall only be consumed by patrons 

seated at tables. 
 

14. All outside tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable by 22.30 hours each day. 
 

15. The premises may remain open for the sale of alcohol and the provision of late-night 
refreshment from the terminal hour for those activities on New Year's Eve through to 
the commencement time for those activities on New Year's Day. 

 
16. All sales of alcohol for consumption ‘Off’ the premises shall be in sealed containers 

only and shall not be consumed on the premises. 
 

17. There shall be no sales of alcohol for consumption ‘Off’ the premises after 23.00 
hours. 

 
18. After 21.00 hours each day there shall be a personal licence holder on duty on the 

premises at all times when the premises are authorised to sell alcohol. The 
requirement and number of SIA door supervisors after 21.00 hours shall be risk 
assessed by the premises licence holder, such risk assessment shall be kept at the 
premises for a minimum of 21 days following the occasion. 

 
19. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any 
light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open 
for licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. 
All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time 
stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the 
request of Police or authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day period. 

 
20. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 
21. A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 scheme shall be operated at the premises where the 

only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification 
cards, such as driving licence, passport of proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.  

 
22. Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke, 

shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 

page 86



  

 
23. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the following: (a) 
all crimes reported to the venue 

a. (b) all ejections of patrons 
b. (c) any complaints received regarding crime disorder 
c. (d) any incidents of disorder 
d. (e) any faults in the CCTV system 
e. (f) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
f. (g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 

 
24. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

 
25. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 

needs of the local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 
 

26. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure 
sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or 
accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that 
this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored 
in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business. 

 
27. No collection of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall 

take place between 23:00 and 07:00 hours on the following day. 
 

28. No deliveries to the premises shall take place between 23:00 and 07:00 hours on the 
following day. 

 
29. The premises licence holder shall ensure that any patrons drinking and/or smoking 

outside the premises do so in an orderly manner and are supervised by staff so as to 
ensure that there is no public nuisance or obstruction of the public highway. 

 
30. The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape provisions, 

emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and mechanical equipment, 
shall at all material times be maintained in good condition and full working order. 

 
31. The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, 

free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with 
the plans provided. 

 
32. All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of a 

key, code, card or similar means. 
 

33. All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held open 
other than by an approved device. 

 
34. Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency safety signs 

or emergency equipment. 
 

35. No licensable activities shall take place until the premises has been assessed as 
satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team at which time this 
condition shall be removed from the Licence by the licensing authority. 

 
36. No licensable activities shall take at the premises until the capacity of the premises 

has been determined by the Environmental Health Consultation Team and the 

page 87



  

licensing authority has replaced this condition on the licence with a condition detailing 
the capacity so determined. 

 
37. Before the premises open to the public, the plans as deposited will be checked by the 

Environmental Health Consultation Team to ensure they are an accurate reflection of 

the premises constructed. Where the premises layout has changed during the course 

of construction new plans shall be provided to the Environmental Health Consultation 

Team and the Licensing Authority. 

Conditions proposed by the Metropolitan Police Service and agreed by the applicant 
so as to form part of the operating schedule. 

 
38. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any 
light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open 
for licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises 
and will include the external area immediately outside the premises entrance. All 
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time 
stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the 
request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period. 

 
39. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 
40. The premises licence holder shall ensure that the management team register and 

successfully complete the nationally recognised counter terrorism training product 
referred to as ACT eLearning package or can demonstrate that the ACT eLearning 
product has been successfully completed within the preceding 12 months and that all 
staff employed by or at the premises complete the ACT eLearning within a reasonable 
period not exceeding 3 months from the day they start their employment 

  
Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health 

 
     None. 
 

Conditions proposed by an interested party 
 
 

41. The number of seats in the outside terrace should be a maximum of 20 seats.  
 
42.  No alcohol should be served without food, including the bar and private dining room. 
  
43.  The number of people smoking outside will be limited to 5 persons" and only in the 
      designated area for smokers in Davies Street.  
  
44.  No smoking allowed in the terrace area.  
 
45.  Outside tables and seats should be stored inside by 10:30 pm.  

 

page 88



  

Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity                                    Appendix 6 
 

 
Resident Count: 90 
 

Licensed premises within 75 metres of Connaught House,1-3 Mount Street,  
London W1K 3NB 

Licence Number Trading Name Address 
Premises 
Type Time Period 

21/01219/LIPDPS 
Hedonism 
Drinks 

3 Davies Street 
London W1K 3DJ Shop 

Sunday; 12:00 - 
21:00 | Monday 
to Saturday; 
10:00 - 21:00 

11/04121/LIPDPS GSK 

34 Berkeley 
Square London 
W1J 5BF Office 

Monday to 
Sunday; 00:00 - 
00:00 

13/10242/LIPN Phillips 

30 Berkeley 
Square London 
W1J 6EX 

Auction 
Rooms 

Sunday; 12:00 - 
23:00 | Monday 
to Thursday; 
10:00 - 00:00 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 

page 89



  

21/01308/LIPV 
Alfreds, Bourdon 
House 

2-2A Davies Street 
London W1K 3DJ 

Club or 
institution 

Monday to 
Sunday; 00:00 - 
00:00 

17/00683/LIPRW 8 Mount Street 
8 Mount Street 
London W1K 3NF Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 | Monday 
to Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 

20/01033/LIPT Mortons Club 

Basement To 
Third Floor 28 
Berkeley Square 
London W1J 6EN 

Night clubs 
and discos 

Sunday; 09:00 - 
03:00 | Monday 
to Saturday; 
09:00 - 03:30 

16/05506/LIPVM Finos 

Basement 123 
Mount Street 
London W1K 3NP Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 | Monday 
to Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 

06/03894/WCCMAP Delfino 

Ground Floor 121 
Mount Street 
London W1K 3NW Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 - 
23:30 | Monday 
to Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:00 

 
 
 

page 90



page 91

Agenda Item 2.



1. Application

1-A Applicant and premises 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 

Application received date: 26 July 2021 

Applicant: Sheesh London Ltd 

Premises: Sheesh 

Premises address: 70 Brompton Road Ward: Knightsbridge 
London And Belgravia 

SW3 1ER Cumulative None 
Impact Area: 
Special None 
Consideration 
Zone: 

Premises description: The premises intends to operate as a restaurant with private 

dining rooms in basement, restaurant/holding bar on ground 
floor and members/diners lounge and restaurant on 1st floor. 
There is no external area for the consumption of food and drink. 

Premises licence history: This is a new premises application and therefore no Premises 

Licence history exist. However, The application follows pre-
application advice ref: 21/05285/PREAPM. A copy of this report 
can be found at Appendix 4. 

Applicant submissions: The applicant has provided the following supporting documents 
which can be found at Appendix 3. 

• An operation and dispersal policy
• A brochure
• Pre-application advice report
• Witness statement
• Food and drink menus

Applicant amendments: Following submission of the application, the applicant has 
provide an amended first floor plan which illustrates an 
extended raised dining area and the green hatching that will be 
used as a members/diner's lounge bar & library. 

A copy of the amended plan can be found at Aooendix 1. 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 

Late Night Refreshment: Indoors, outdoors or both I Indoors 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 

Start: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 
End: 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 23:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non- I Sunday before Bank Holiday Monday 23:00 to 00:00. 
standard timings: New Year's Eve 23:00 to 01 :00 New Year's Dav. 

page 92



page 93



page 94



page 95



page 96



page 97



page 98



page 99



page 100



page 101



page 102



page 103



page 104



page 105



page 106



page 107



page 108



page 109



page 110



page 111



page 112



 
1. Prevention of Crime and Disorder: 
 
Paragraph 1 of CD1, of the City of Westminster’s Licensing Policy requires that Sheesh submits 
an operating schedule covering how they would be controlling queuing, dispersing customers at 
end of trading, how often they would be doing a litter sweep etc. From the plan and brochure, it 
seems to suggest that a very substantial operation is being proposed with a potential 300 
capacity business. 
 
However, no operation schedule has been submitted and none of these points have been 
adequately covered in the Schedule of Condition. Moreover, so far, we can see no risk 
assessment has been carried out by Sheesh. 
 
It is also unclear from the plan and brochure whether the Premises is intended to be a 
restaurant led business or more a bar led premises, with the restaurant as a secondary 
business. This is important to understand as Knightsbridge is a predominately residential area, 
and the Premises is also situated next to a conservation area. If Sheesh is intending to operate 
a bar led business, by approving the Premises License, this will not only impact the residents  

 but also adversely transform the surrounding area. 
 
Additionally, the Schedule of Conditions does not refer to the Metropolitan Police’s effective 
management checklist as set out in Appendix 7A. 
 
Paragraph 4 of CD1, also requires that there are sufficient management measures to prevent 
crime and disorder. We have not seen any policies to understand what the priorities for the 
management are, whether they aware of the kinds of risks this type premises might create or 
what Sheesh are going to do to manage those risks. As Sheesh already owns an establishment 
in Chigwell, Essex which is attended regularly by footballers, reality stars, celebrities etc, it is 
assumed that Sheesh will try to replicate the client base at the Premises. Given the location of 
the Premises and the type of customers it seeks to attract (e.g., footballers, celebrities etc), 
illegal drugs, loud altercations, fights (Harrow Times reported that Myles Stephenson was 
allegedly attacked last year in Sheesh, Chigwell) exuberant behaviours are concerns which has 
not been addressed in the Schedule of Conditions. 
 
Paragraph 7 of CD1, requires that Sheesh undertakes a terrorism threat risk assessment that 
ensures that security-related vulnerabilities have been identified, and reasonable, and 
proportionate steps have been taken to reduce the risk from a terrorist attack. As the Premises 
is situated in Knightsbridge (opposite Harrod), there has been precedent for terrorist activities in 
these kinds of locations (e.g., the terrorist bomb in 1983) and, therefore, this should have been 
an issue to address in the Schedule of Conditions. 
 
Sheesh has also failed to explain how they will deal with the dispersal of customers at the end 
of trading. This is of great importance for the residents of  who will be 
disturbed by the noise late at night, especially as the Premises Licence sought by Sheesh is 
beyond the City of Westminster’s core licensing hours. Additionally, as mentioned, the 
customers that would be attending the Premises are likely to be high profile individuals as 
stated above which have the potential to attract photographers and crowds trying to obtain 
photographs. Nothing in the Schedule of Conditions adequately sets out how this will be 
handled. 
 
Sheesh has applied to sell alcohol for consumption off the Premises. Given that the City of 
Westminster is subject to a drinking order, it is surprising that this licencing activity is being 
sought, and we have seen no justification provided for this in the Schedule of Conditions. There 
is also a major concern that customers would be likely to leave the Premises with expensive 
bottles of alcohol which could result in them being a target of crime (theft) and this is in addition 
to the general risk that such sales are likely, in some cases, to lead to anti-social behaviour. 
None of this is covered in the Schedule of Conditions. 

page 113



 
As such, Sheesh cannot demonstrate their compliance with Policy CD1 and, therefore, this 
Premises could well contribute to the problem of crime and disorder which is contrary to the first 
licensing objective. 
 
2. Public Safety 
 
Paragraph 1 of PS1 requires that Sheesh have satisfactory general and technical risk 
assessments and that management procedures and certificates have been made available to 
the relevant authority to show that they can demonstrate that the public will be safe within and in 
the vicinity of the Premises. 
 
As far as we can see no assessments have been carried out. 
 
Paragraph 2 of PS1, requires Sheesh to undertake a risk assessment as to the maximum 
number of people who can be present in the Premises, so that it can operate safely and can be 
evacuated for safely in an emergency. A risk assessment has not been submitted nor has 
Sheesh been able to confirm the number of people. 
 
The Schedule of Conditions has not addressed how customers will arrive and depart from the 
Premises safely or how Sheesh will deal with fights that may occur when customers are 
queuing, in and around the Premises. The Schedule of Conditions does not make reference to 
any counter terrorism measures. 
 
For the reasons set out above, Sheesh cannot demonstrate their compliance with Policy PS1. 
 
3. Public Nuisance 
 
Paragraph 2 of PN1, requires that Sheesh takes steps to reduce the risk of nuisance occurring.  
The Schedule of Conditions does not adequately demonstrate how it will prevent noise, light 
pollution (head light of cars parked outside), air pollution from the increased number of cars 
dropping and collecting customers attending the Premises and littering from being outside the 
Premises. 
 
Sheesh have also failed to submit a noise statement, as per Appendix 11 Conditions 13 and 14 
of the Schedule of Conditions are inadequate as they do not provide how the Sheesh will 
prevent noise nuisance outside the Premises and near 10 Lancelot Place. This is a particular 
concern as  and the building has 
ground floor flats with windows and balconies at street level, as well as terraces on other floors, 
the residents of which would suffer from excessive noise and disruption every day. 
 
The Schedule of Conditions also fails to address where the smoking areas will be and how they 
will be managed; where the queues are going to be formed and how would be kept orderly; how 
they are going to direct customers when leaving; no policy has been provided about littering and 
where they would assemble their takeaway drivers/deliveries to prevent congestion and 
nuisances to  residents Given also that Sheesh’s establishment in Chigwell, 
Essex has had various complaints about littering we are surprised that a littering policy has not 
been mentioned in the Schedule of Conditions. 
 

 has planters in front of the building which would be ideal for smokers and 
drinkers to sit on and congregate. This will have a direct impact on the residents  

, as there will be additional cleaning and landscaping costs that may be required to 
maintain the building, which will in turn increase the service charge payable by residents. 
Sheesh do not have the material needed to comply with Policy PN1, and the Schedule of 
Conditions fails to provide how activity outside the Premises will be managed so that it will not 
cause public 
nuisance. 

page 114



page 115



page 116



page 117



page 118



page 119



page 120



page 121



page 122



  
1. A premise in which customers are shown to their table or the customer will select a table 
themselves to which food is either served to them or they have collected themselves.  

2. In which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the premises 
and are served and consumed at a table.  

3. Which do not provide any takeaway service of food and/or drink for immediate consumption.  

4. Where alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the premises otherwise than to 
persons who are bona fide taking substantial table meals and provided always that the 
consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals.  

5. The sale and consumption of alcohol prior to such meals may be in a bar area but must also 
be ancillary to the taking of such meal.  
 
Again, for ease of reference we set out here the WCC Model Condition for restaurants:  
 
The premises shall only operate as a restaurant,  
 
(i) in which customers are shown to their table or the customer will select a table themselves,  

(ii) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only,  

(iii) which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the premises 
and are served and consumed at the table,  

(iv) which do not provide any takeaway service of food or drink for immediate consumption off 
the premises,  

(v) where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by persons who 
are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table meals there and provided 
always that the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals. For 
the purpose of this condition ‘Substantial Table Meal’ means – a meal such as might be 
expected to be served as the main midday or main evening meal, or as a main course at either 
such meal and is eaten by a person seated at a table, or at a counter or other structure which 
serves the purposes of a table and is not used for the service of refreshments for consumption 
by persons not seated at a table or structure servicing the purposes of a table.  
 
Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the premises part 
consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to their meal.  
 
The uniqueness of Knightsbridge  
 
Knightsbridge is a local neighbourhood. Many of its residents have established connections with 
the area going back generations. It is often referred to as a “Village”. It is not and never has 
been a City Centre.  
 
The Knightsbridge Neighbourhood Plan December 2018 found that the strongest message from 
residents, businesses and cultural institutions was a desire to preserve or improve the character 
and appearance of Knightsbridge and reinforce its sense of community. People want 
Knightsbridge to remain a special place to live, work, bring up children and enjoy life.  
 
Knightsbridge is one of the most iconic names and places in the world. To its visitors, it is famed 
for world class shops, cultural venues and hotels. Yet to its residents it is home - the place 
where local people live and enjoy their daily lives  
 
For the residents of Knightsbridge, it is important that the benefits of living in a busy, bustling 
central London neighbourhood are balanced against the need for tranquillity in a pleasant 
environment.  
 
Our Residents recognise that they are privileged to live in a prime residential neighbourhood 
and are proud of its architecture, heritage and townscape. They have a very strong desire to 
protect the unique character of Knightsbridge both for themselves and the future generations. 
  

page 123



The Application  
 
We summarise the Application as follows:  
 
Alcohol hours requested:  
Monday to Saturday: 10am to 12 midnight.  
Sunday: 10am to 11.30pm.  
Sundays immediately prior to a bank holiday: 10am to 12 midnight.  
New Year’s Eve: 10am to 1am  
 
Late Night refreshment  
From 11pm to the above terminal hours.  
 
The Venue  
 
Basement dining rooms  
No capacity is offered, but according to the Applicant’s brochure, the capacity for this area is 28. 
  
The only condition specific to this area is that the sale of alcohol in the basement dining rooms 
shall be ancillary to substantial food.  
 
This is significantly less restrictive than the WCC Model Condition. In fact, the operating 
schedule does not include any of the 5 criteria for the WCC Model Restaurant Condition.  
 
No conditions are included in respect of the lobby and so the use of this area would be 
unrestricted.  
 
Ground floor  
No capacity is offered, but according to the Applicant’s brochure, the capacity for this area is 
122.  
 
The only condition specific to the ground floor provides that alcohol served in the “ground floor 
restaurant hatched shall only be to persons seated and by waiter/waitress service”.  
 
There is no WCC restaurant condition proposed and so the sale/supply/consumption of alcohol 
need not be ancillary to food.  
 
First floor  
 
No capacity is offered, but according to the Applicant’s brochure, the capacity for this area is 
136.  
 
Confusingly the operating schedule has two conditions numbered 2.  
 
The first condition 2 allows for the 1st floor to be used either as an exclusive membership club 
or for diners before or after they have eaten.  
 
This means that again the 1st floor can be used as a very large drinking space. The 
membership condition is, with respect, meaningless.  
 
The Application is for a very large bar, in which vertical drinking will be permitted save on the 
ground floor.  
 
The Applicant has indicated, but is not conditioning, a capacity of 286.  
 
There is no condition requiring the supply or consumption of alcohol to be ancillary to any form 
of food or entertainment.  

page 124



 
It is quite clear from the Application that the Venue is intended for use as a bar and so must be 
considered under Policy PB1.  
 
Grounds for the representation  
 
This representation is made on the basis that the Application, if granted, is likely to be contrary 
to the licensing objectives, being the prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, the 
protection of children from harm and, in particular, the prevention of public nuisance.  
 
Hours  
 
Policy HRS1  
 
The Application is for hours outside of Westminster’s core hours.  
We refer to Policy HRS1 which sets out the criteria for applications outside of core hours.  
This includes;  
1. Possible impact on crime and disorder, public safety and public nuisance.  

2. Whether there is residential accommodation likely to be adversely affected.  

3. The past operation of the premises.  

4. Whether customers and staff have adequate access to public transport when arriving and 
leaving.  
 
The Policy states at paragraph 2.3.4 that “the hours at which noise may occur and disturbance 
of residents’ rest, relaxation and sleep will be of particular concern.”  
 
Should the Application be granted, there is a significant likelihood of an increase in public 
nuisance and possible issues of public safety and crime and disorder.  
 
There is significant residential accommodation likely to be adversely affected by the grant of the 
Application. So far as we are aware, the Applicant has not consulted with residents or resident 
representative groups.  
 
The Application does not address the inadequate access to public transport for customers and 
staff when arriving and leaving the Venue, particularly late at night and for the hours being the 
subject of the Application.  
 
The operating schedule within the Application gives no consideration to the limited availability of 
public transport in the early hours of the morning. The nature of the Venue’s clientele is that a 
large percentage of their patrons are likely to be dropped off and collected by car, immediately 
outside of the Venue.  
 
The Prevention of Public Nuisance  
 
Policy PN1  
 
The issues that are likely to arise from the grant of the Application are:  
 
1. Large numbers of people, many of whom will be in high spirits, will be departing from the 
Venue late at night and making noise as they do so.  
 
2. Large numbers of people will arrive and depart from the premises during the day, evening 
and night and making noise as they do so.  
 
3. Significant numbers of taxis or private vehicles are likely to congregate, waiting to pick up 
passengers, with additional disturbance created by the noise of doors opening and closing and 
horns being used.  

page 125



 
4. Patrons are likely to congregate to smoke outside the Venue, conversing and otherwise 
making noise whilst standing there. We note that the Applicant states in its brochure that it will 
direct smokers to Brompton Road. This will clearly present a public nuisance.  
 
5. The celebrity focus of the Venue is likely to attract photographers and journalists obstructing 
the highway and creating public nuisance through noise and general disturbance.  
 
6. Additional deliveries to the premises due to larger scale and more frequent events.  
 
The grant of the Application would very likely result in significant public nuisance.  
 
The Guidance states at paragraph 2.16 that public nuisance is not defined in the Licensing Act 
2003 and retains its broad common law meaning. Guidance states:  
 
“It may include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and 
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises”.  
The grant of the Application would clearly be contrary to the Guidance as the proposals of the 
Venue, if implemented, are likely to result in increased nuisance to many people who live 
locally.  
 
The Prevention of Crime and Disorder  
 
Policy CD1  
 
The Policy makes it clear that WCC sees a link between late night venues and crime and 
disorder.  
 
The Residents are aware of the concerns raised by Mayfair residents following the grant of 
licences for restaurant bars in that area. Mayfair is now a Special Consideration Zone. An 
unintended consequence of cumulative impact policies and the newer special consideration 
zones is a migration of large new venues to desirable locations outside these areas. They 
consider that it is easier to achieve a licence outside of the special policy areas. This is 
precisely what is happening in Knightsbridge and the Residents plead with the Licensing Sub 
Committee to address this issue before a special policy becomes a necessity.  
 
The Residents fully expect that should the Application be granted, there will be an increase in 
crime and disorder in the area.  
 
The Protection of Children from Harm  
 
Policy CH1  
 
Many of the Residents have young children. The grant of the Application is likely to result in late 
night noise and so disturbance to sleep.  
 
The Residents have a legitimate expectation of a good night’s sleep.  
 
Public Safety  
 
Policy PS1  
 
The position of the Venue does not lend itself to the safe departure of large numbers of patrons 
and in particular late at night. An increase in anti-social behaviour inside and immediately 
outside the Venue, an increase in patrons smoking on the pavement outside the Venue and the 
inevitable increase in traffic for the drop off and collection of patrons is likely to threaten public 
safety.  

page 126



 
The Brochure  
 
The Applicant has provided a brochure describing the Venue as follows:  
 
“Sheesh is a unique proposition and our new restaurant will bring a sensory journey to 
Knightsbridge through our unique offer of delicious food and outstanding service.  
 
Sheesh London will offer a stylish dining experience and an exclusive private members lounge 
and will fit seamlessly into the area. 
  
We have particularly high standards and will endeavour to deliver a high-end product.”  
 
The Residents are concerned that the Brochure is aspirational and does not reflect the reality. 
The Applicant has one other venue being Sheesh at High Rd, Chigwell Essex IG7 6QA. 
  
We refer the Licensing Sub Committee to the Sheesh web site http://sheeshrestaurant.co.uk/. 
We ask the Committee to compare the web site to the Brochure.  
 
In particular, the first floor is promoted as having live music five nights a week,  
http://sheeshrestaurant.co.uk/the-1st-floor/  
 
This appears to be a nightclub area with live music.  
 
We do not understand the following statement:  
 
“The first floor is for couples only. Table of 4 Max.” 
  
http://sheeshrestaurant.co.uk/booking-info/  
 
We do not understand the following statement:  
 
“Tables of 6 must be a mixed party on Friday and Saturday nights only, all other times same sex 
parties are O.K.”  
 
http://sheeshrestaurant.co.uk/sugar-suite/  
 
“The Sugar Suite is for couples only…”  
 
https://www.essexlive.news/whats-on/food-drink/sheesh-chigwell-inside-pretentious-
exceptional-2776518  
 
Essex Live describes Sheesh as “one of the biggest celebrity hotspots in Essex”. Regular 
guests include the casts from TOWIE, Geordie Shore and Love Island.  
 
Many online reviews describe the venue as “pretentious”.  
 
We would refer the Licensing Sub-Committee to the Trip Advisor reviews at: 
 
https://www.tripadvisor.co.uk/Restaurant Review-g1972036-d2038888-Reviews-
Sheesh at Ye Olde Kings Head-Chigwell Essex England.html  
 
The Applicant’s own web site and the online reviews give a very clear picture of the type of 
venue to expect should the Application be granted.  
 

 wishes to make it clear that even if the Applicant were to amend its Application to core 
hours and agree to the WCC Model Restaurant Condition, it’s representation will stand.  

page 127



 
Summary  
 
In the light of the above, the  opposes the grant of the Application on the grounds that it 
would be contrary to the licensing objectives, the Policy and the Guidance.  
 
Brompton Road is the wrong location for a venue of this type. The clientele will undoubtably 
create a public nuisance as they arrive and depart.  
 
The Guidance states one of the principle aims of licensing legislation is that of protecting the 
public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and noise nuisance.  
 
It also states the importance of involving local residents in licensing decisions and for them to 
have their say regarding licensing decisions that may affect them.  
 
Here the Applicant has failed to consult with residents. It has failed to have even a basic regard 
for the Policy or the unique characteristics of the area. It has demonstrated through its existing 
venue, the type of venue that the Residents can expect should the Application be granted, even 
if amended.  
 

recognises that every application must be considered on its merits. However, it remains 
very concerned that should this Application be granted, there will be numerous applications that 
will follow whereby retail premises are converted into bar/restaurants. This will have a huge 
impact on the local community and change, forever, the very special features that make 
Knightsbridge unique.  
 

reserves the right to expand on the contents of this letter of representation by way of the 
submission of additional information and to call witnesses to support the points made in this 
letter. 

 

page 128



page 129



arrangements for people to be collected from the premises to travel 
home safely. 

12. Conditions on hours may be attached that require that the supply 
of alcohol for consumption on the premises ceases a suitable period 
of time before customers are required to leave the premises. 

13. The council, acting as the Licensing Authority, may reduce hours 
if, after review, it is necessary to impose conditions specifying 
shorter hours in order to promote the licensing objectives. 

14. Specific days for non-standard hours should be identified and 
justified as part of the application to allow responsible authorities 
and interested parties to evaluate the impact that these licensable 
activities may have, and to plan accordingly. The consideration of 
applications for later hours for Bank Holiday Mondays will take into 
account that later hours are generally granted for preceding 
Sundays and that the next day is a working day. Non-specific days 
are expected to be covered by Temporary Event Notices or variation 
applications. 

C. For the purpose of Clauses A and B above, the Core Hours for 
applications for each premises use type as defined within this policy 
are: 
 
1. Casinos 
Up to 24 hours a day whilst casino gaming is permitted 
by a premises licence under the Gambling Act 2005. 
 
2. Cinemas, Cultural Venues and Live Sporting Premises 
Monday to Sunday: 9am to Midnight. 
 
3. Delivery Centres 
Monday to Saturday: 8am to 11pm. 
Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. 
 
4. Hotels 
Monday to Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm. 
Friday and Saturday: 9am to Midnight. 
Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. 
Sundays immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to Midnight. 
For the sale of alcohol to guests for consumption in 
hotel/guest rooms only: Anytime up to 24 hours. 
 
5. Outdoor Spaces 
Monday to Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm. 
Friday and Saturday: 9am to Midnight. 
Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. 
Sundays immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to Midnight. 
 
6. Pubs and bars, Fast Food and Music and Dance venues 
Monday to Thursday: 10am to 11.30pm. 
Friday and Saturday: 10am to Midnight. 
Sunday: Midday to 10.30pm. 
Sundays immediately prior to a bank holiday: Midday to Midnight. 
 
7. Qualifying Clubs 

page 130



Monday to Thursday 9am to 11.30pm 
Friday and Saturday 9am to Midnight 
Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm 
Sunday immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to Midnight. 
 
8. Restaurants 
Monday to Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm. 
Friday and Saturday: 9am to Midnight. 
Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. 
Sundays immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to Midnight. 
 
9. Sexual Entertainment Venues and Sex Cinemas 
Monday to Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm. 
Friday and Saturday: 9am to Midnight. 
Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. 
Sundays immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to Midnight. 
 
10a. Shops (all licensable activities that are provided as 
ancillary to the primary use of the premises as a shop except 
the off sale of alcohol) 
Monday to Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm. 
Friday and Saturday: 9am to Midnight. 
Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. 
Sundays immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to Midnight. 
 
10b. Shops (off-sales of alcohol where it forms either the 
ancillary or primary use of the premises) 
Monday to Saturday: 8am to 11pm. 
Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. 
 
D. Core hours are when customers are permitted to be on the 
premises and therefore the maximum opening hours permitted will 
be to the same start and terminal hours for each of the days where 
licensable activity is permitted. 
E. For the purposes of this policy, ‘premises uses’ are defined within 
the relevant premises use policies within this statement. 
 
Note: The core hours are for all licensable activities but if an 
application includes late night refreshment then the starting time for 
that licensable activity will be 11pm. 

Policy RNT1 (A) 
applies 

A. Applications outside the West End Cumulative Impact Zone will 
generally be granted subject to: 
 
1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1. 
2. The hours for licensable activities being within the council’s Core 
Hours Policy HRS1. 
3. The operation of any delivery services for alcohol and/or latenight 
refreshment meeting the council’s Ancillary Delivery of Alcohol 
and/or Late-Night Refreshment Policy DEL1. 
4. The applicant has taken account of the Special Consideration 
Zones Policy SCZ1 if the premises are located within a designated 
zone. 
5. The application and operation of the venue meeting the definition 
of a restaurant as per Clause C. 
 
C. For the purposes of this policy a restaurant is defined as: 

page 131



1. A premises in which customers are shown to their table or the 
customer will select a table themselves to which food is either 
served to them or they have collected themselves. 
2. Which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are 
prepared on the premises and are served and consumed at a table. 
3. Which do not provide any takeaway service of food and/or drink 
for immediate consumption, except if provided via an ancillary 
delivery service to customers at their residential or workplace 
address. 
4. Where alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the 
premises otherwise than to persons who are bona fide taking 
substantial table meals and provided always that the consumption of 
alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 
5. The sale and consumption of alcohol prior to such meals may be 
in a bar area but must also be ancillary to the taking of such meal. 

 
4.         Equality Implications 
 

The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to  
its public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In  
summary, section 149 provides that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of  
its functions, have due regard to the need to:  

 
(a) eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under this Act;  
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and  
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristics and persons who do not share it.  

Section 149 (7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines the relevant protected characteristics as 
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation. 

 
 
 

page 132



page 133



page 134



page 135



Premises Plans          Appendix 1 
 

 

page 136



 
 
 

page 137



DO NOT SCALE: Use figured dimensions only. All dimensions are to be checked 
on site. Any queries or discrepancies must be reported immediately to the 
architect.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with drawings and specifications 
prepared by the architects and any other information prepared by others for the 
stated project.

All illustrated material is subject to copyright unless otherwise agreed in writing. 
This document must be read for the express purpose and project for which it has 
been created and delivered and must be read with relevant specification clauses.

Rev Drawn DescriptionDate

Proposed
First Floor Plan

Drawing 
number:

Date

Rev.Scale

Drawn by Checked

Drawing title

2014-A4-031

Project title

info@stanesbyarchitecture.co.uk
www.Stanesbyarchitecture.co.uk
m: 07917 246 805

70 Brompton Road

GSSep 2021 CO

1:75@ A1
1:150 @ A3

FOR PLANNING

NOTE:
Items shown on this plan which are not required by the plans regulations 
are for illustrative purposes only, and do not form part of the licence.  These 
items may be removed at the discretion of the licence holder.  The current 
location of the current fire safety equipment and any other safety equipment 
is as shown.  These items may be removed from time to time with 
agreement of the Fire Officer or after risk assessment’

up

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41
42 43 44 45

46
47

48

49

50

1.08
LOUNGE (24 Seats)

1.09
LONG BAR (10 seats)

1.01
GRAND STAIRCASE

1.07
RAISED FLOOR

1.03
LIBRARY (16 seats)

DINING (100 covers)

1000

NEW FIRE EXIT TO 
LANDLORD STAIRS

FIRE EXIT

 
STAFF LIFT

ffl+0.340

1.10
Dirties

FIRE EXIT

HOST

Dual fans with 
splitter Filters

Filter access zone

Filter access zone

1.04
WC's1.02

PLANT

1.06
WC's

1.05
STORE

CLOAKROOM

1.01
VESTIBULE

0 4 6 8 10 12 M

Window to be sufficiently tinited to 
obscure the restaurant interior from 
the street

LEGENDLEGEND

Proposed Walls

Existing Walls

Landlord Lift
Supply of alcohol only (without food), 
from the bar, available to these areas only.

page 138



Additional submissions from Interested party 4      Appendix 2 
 
Page left blank 

page 139



page 140



 

2 
 
 
 

Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2020 that came into effect last year.  

However, we cannot see that any planning application has been made to allow for the proposed material 

change of use.   

We are fully aware that planning and licensing are considered under distinct and separate regimes and that 

you are required as a matter of law to only consider matters that relate to the licensing objectives as set out in 

the Licensing Act 2003 being (i) prevention of crime and disorder (ii)  public safety (iii) prevention of public 

nuisance and (iv) protection of children from harm. 

However, sections B17 and B18 the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy (as operative 1 October 2021) 

(“The Statement”) recognises that although the absence of lawful permission is not directly a matter for 

licensing to resolve it is nonetheless a relevant consideration and the Council as a planning authority may 

make representations since there is a recognised overlap in respect of shared concerns relating to nuisance 

and public safety.  We have accordingly copied this letter to the Council’s Planning Team so there is co-

ordination on these concerns. 

The Main Issues 

(i) Public Nuisance 

My client raised concerns about noise and disturbance being generated both from within and 

outside the Premises.  Policy PN1 of the Statement recognises that regard must be had to the 

disturbance of people living and working within the vicinity and that strict controls should be 

imposed in areas where there is close residential accommodation, as in this instance given that 

 

As noise is a particular concern we would have expected to see a noise statement provided with 

the application in accordance with paragraph 5 of Appendix 11 of the Statement. This has not 

been submitted. In addition, the proposed draft conditions submitted by the applicant do not 

provide sufficient protection for residents and they do not follow the guidance set out in Appendix 

11 of the Statement.  

We, accordingly, urge the Council to refuse the application. 

If the Council is minded otherwise, we set out below our amendments to the proposed conditions 

(changes are shown in red) together with additional conditions we would expect to be imposed: 

Existing draft conditions 

2. The supply of alcohol to the first-floor lounge bar shall not be sold or supplied otherwise 

than to either:  

i) members and their bona fide guests (limited to 5 guests) , such members having paid an 

annual fee of at least £500, a list of all members to be held at reception for inspection by the 

page 141



 

3 
 
 
 

relevant authorities; no person shall be admitted to the membership of the premises without 

an interval of at least 48 hours between application and acceptance to membership.  

ii) Persons waiting to dine or who have dined.  

13. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the premises 

which:  

(a) give rise to a nuisance; 

(b) at the nearest façade of the nearest noise sensitive property shall not exceed 

10 dB below the minimum external background noise during the operating 

period; and  

(c) at the nearest façade of the nearest noise sensitive property, the noise 

generated within each octave band level should not exceed 5 dB below the 

minimum external background noise level expressed in any of the individual 

octave band levels. 

14. The external doors and windows shall be kept closed after 21.00 hours, or at any time 

when regulated entertainment takes place, except for the immediate access and egress of 

persons. 

21. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or 

placed in outside areas between 19.00 hours and 08.00 hours on the following day.   

Additional draft conditions 

26. A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly available at 

all times the premises are open. This telephone number is to be made available to residents 

and businesses in the vicinity. 

27. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the needs 

of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.  

28. Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons 

to respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly. 

29. Measures shall be taken to minimise and prevent noise breakout from the premises, 

including but not limited to: use of acoustic enclosures; use of noise attenuators and acoustic 

screens as required; use of vibration insulators; electronic sound limiters on amplification 

systems; and installation of an acoustic lobby with inner and outer acoustic doors designed to 

prevent both sets of doors being opened at the same. 

page 142



 

4 
 
 
 

30. Measures shall be taken to ensure that plant, machinery and equipment is maintained to 

prevent noise levels from them increasing. 

31. Clear signage and communication to persons entering and exiting the premises shall be 

implemented to prevent and control noise and crowding of persons outside the premises. 

32. Measures shall be implemented to control and prevent queuing outside the premises, 

ensure the quiet entering and exiting of the premises by all persons and to ensure good 

behaviour to minimise any disturbance outside and within the Premises. 

33. Arrangements shall be made for dedicated taxi or licensed minicabs to collect and to 

ensure that all private vehicles use designated dropping off/picking up and waiting points as 

agreed with the Council and away from Lancelot Place.  

34. Measures managing transport arrangements to and from the premises (including staff or 

patron parking) shall be implemented to minimise any disturbance.  

35. Deliveries, collections and operational servicing shall only be carried out between 07.00 

and 19.00, except where access at other times is unavoidable and specific procedures are in 

place to limit disturbance.  

36. Drivers shall be encouraged to switch off engine during deliveries, collections and 

servicing, and to minimise other noise caused by their activities. 

37. The maximum number of persons permitted on the premises (excluding staff) shall not 

exceed: [250].  NB: there needs to be an agreed max limit of person on the Premises at any 

time and a max limit for each floor based on seating capacity as opposed to vertical drinking 

space. 

38. No outside seating areas will be permitted any time. 

(ii) Public Safety 

My client also raised concerns about safety in respect of the surrounding residents.  Policy CD1 

and PS1 of the Statement recognises that regard must be had as to whether the operation of a 

premises promotes the prevention of crime and disorder and ensures public safety within both the 

premises and its vicinity.  

Again, we do not feel the proposed conditions go far enough to protect local residents and do not 

follow the guidance contained in the Statement. For these additional reasons the application 

should be refused. 

page 143



 

5 
 
 
 

Similarly, though, if the Council is minded otherwise, we set out below our amendments to the 

proposed conditions (changes are shown in red) together with additional conditions we would 

expect to be imposed: 

 

Existing draft conditions  

11. Patrons or staff permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises at ground 

floor level or who remain in the vicinity of the premises for such temporary duration, e.g. to 

smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 

Additional draft conditions 

39. Flashing or particularly bright lights on or outside the premises shall not cause a nuisance 

to nearby properties, save insofar as they are necessary for the prevention of crime.  

40. Measures to prevent illegal drugs being brought onto the premises and measures  

to discourage the use of illegal drugs. 

 

We trust that the above will be taken into account and that the license application is refused as the proposed 

location is not suitable for the proposed late-night activities.  In the alternative, if the Council is minded to 

approve the application, we would ask that the conditions are amended/ added as above. 

Yours sincerely 

 
 

 

 
 

page 144



Applicant Supporting Documents        Appendix 3 
 
Pre-application Advice report 
 
 
 

       
   

 

Trading name of business and Address: 70 Brompton Road, SW3 1ER 

Reference Number if Applicable: 21/05285/PREAPM 

Licence:  No 

 

Applicant/solicitor: Lisa 

Sharky Poppleston Allen 

CIZ/SCZ Area: No 

Proposed Business: Members Club and Restaurant/Bar 

 

Proposed Licensed Areas: Basement, Ground and First Floor 

 

Proposed Licensed Activities: Supply of Alcohol, Late-Night Refreshment 

 

Pre application advice purpose:  To assess the premises for a new licence regarding licensing 

hours, activities, capacity and conditions. 

Background to application:  The premises are currently empty previously operating as a Top Shop 

store. New owner is seeking a Premises Licence and will carry out a major refurbishment to establish 

private dining rooms in the basement, a restaurant/bar on the ground floor and members club on the 

first floor. Capacities for the various areas will be maximised dependent upon the final secondary 

escapes established. 

Inspection carried out by Ian Watson (Senior Practitioner Environmental Health (Licensing). 

 

District Surveyor Comments 
 
Means of Escape 

 

Ground Floor - The current ground floor proposal details three exit routes. The main entrance/exit, an 

alternative to the front of the premises and a rear alternative. The rear alternative escape would need 

to be protected from the open kitchen by means of a 30 min fire door and it is advised to make this 

escape width no less than the rear staircase of 1100mm to maximise the capacity. Discounting the 

main entrance/exit as the largest this would mean the two alternative exits would need to be at least 

1000mm clear width to support a flow of 125 through each in line with the guidance in the Technical 

Standards for Places of Entertainment. It is advisable that these are 1050mm clear width if possible, 

to allow a slight safety buffer. 

 

First Floor - The current first floor proposal shows a single secondary escape plus the 

Office Name: Ian Watson 
Designation: Senior Practitioner EH 
Licensing 
Date: 20th June 2021 
Contact number: 
Email: iwatson@westminster.gov.uk 
Signed: Ian Watson 
Uniform Ref Number: 
21/05285/PREAPM 

page 145



accommodation staircase which leads down to the ground floor. The proposed licensed capacity is 

136 persons on the first floor so to achieve this and to maximise the capacity it is advised to open up 

a second protected route into the staircase that serves the upper floors. 

The clear widths of the secondary escapes should not be less that the escape staircases that they 

would be escaping onto. This would then achieve the maximum capacity based on escape provision 

and allow greater flexibility of use. 

 

Basement – The basement PDR’s and toilet area has a single protected exit back up to ground floor 

level.  As long as this is over 750mm clear width this would allow a maximum capacity of 60 persons 

in this area. The staff exit provision from the other parts of the basement appears generally 

acceptable. 

 

It should be confirmed with your building control provider that they are content for the 

accommodation staircase to be considered for means of escape purposes as it is not protected at 

any level but open throughout. 

 

You are advised that the maximum travel distance to any means of escape is 18m and escape 

routes should be designed accordingly. 

 

Additional DS Comments 

• All fire doors protecting exit routes should be provided with intumescent strips and smoke 

seals, three hinges and self-closing devices and generally comply with the relevant provisions 

of Table B1 of Approved Document B. 

• Suitable primary and secondary lighting should be provided throughout, and this should 

include all changes of level and key staff areas such as fire alarm panel location. 

• The fire alarm system should include suitable cut offs of any music and other entertainment 

systems and out recommendation would be that the alarm system is a minimum L2 coverage 

standard if being updated. 

• Any gaps/openings to the balustrading on site or any gaps between the edges of barriers and 

pillars/staircases or similar elements should not allow a sphere of 100mm to pass through. 

• Contrasting nosing’s should be provided to all staircases and particular attention is drawn to 

the core evacuation staircases. 

• Every escape route (other than those in ordinary use) should be marked by emergency exit 

signs complying with BS 5499: Part 1 and these will be located in accordance with the 

recommendations of BS 5499: Part 4. 

• A cause and effect for the fire alarm system and any fire curtains should be produced for 

consideration and this should include suitable cut offs of the music and other entertainment 

systems. 

• Level of fire alarm detection to be considered and it is recommended that system is in line 

with BS 5839 Part 1 2002 Category L1/L2 protection to allow maximum flexibility with capacity 

calculations. 

• All protected exit routes to be provided with 30 minutes fire separation to other parts of the 

premises. The existing areas of penetration to other floors should be appropriately fire 

page 146



stopped/rated.  

• Full details of the emergency lighting scheme should be provided and we would expect the 

system to be in line with BS 5266. 

• Lighting to all public areas should be under management control. 

 
 
Disabled Evacuation 

 

The operator will need to set out a method statement covering the disabled evacuation for the 

premises and the use of any evacuation chairs as required. 

 

We have detailed below some advisory notes on disabled evacuation from the RRO guidance to 

assist as it may be possible to use certain lifts in an emergency under management control. 

 

Below are a number of paragraphs lifted from guidance documents, which may be useful for 

consideration when establishing a robust Disabled Evacuation Plan. 

 

BS 8300 - 8.3.4 Lifts for emergency evacuation 

 

Lifts that are provided to evacuate disabled people in an emergency, whether fire‐fighting lifts or 

evacuation lifts, should conform to the relevant recommendations in BS 9999. 

 

NOTE 1: Lifts can be used to assist in the evacuation of disabled building users if they are encased 

within a fire‐protected shaft and have their own independent electrical supply, control panel and other 

features described in BS 9999. 

 

NOTE 2: Lifts not designed for evacuation can be used for evacuation in certain circumstances, 

provided a fire risk assessment has evaluated that the lift is able to function as an evacuation lift (see 

BS 9999). 

 

NOTE 3: Guidance on fire safety risk assessments for a variety of building types is available from the 

Department for Communities and Local Government. 

 

NOTE 4: BS 9999 refers to BS EN 81‐72 for fire‐fighting lifts. 

 
HM Government Fire Risk Assessment-Theatres, Cinemas and similar premises document 

 

If disabled people are going to be in your premises then you must also provide a safe means for 

them to leave if there is a fire. You and your staff should be aware that disabled people may not 

react, or can react differently, to a fire warning or a fire. You should give similar consideration to 

others with special needs such as parents with young children or the elderly. 

 

Where staged alarms are being used, disabled people should be alerted on the first stage to give 

them the maximum time to escape or move to a refuge, and to implement evacuation procedures 

involving your staff. If you have well-protected refuges and appropriate management procedures, you 

may wish to delay the evacuation of non-ambulant people from certain areas until after the able 

bodied have left since the total evacuation time may be reduced if the disabled people are likely to 

impede the speed of the able-bodied evacuees. 

page 147



 

 

 

 

A refuge is a place of reasonable safety in which disabled people can wait either for an evacuation lift 

or for assistance up or down stairs. Disabled people should not be left alone in a refuge area whilst 

waiting for assistance with evacuation from the building. Depending on the design and fire resistance 

of other elements, a refuge could be a lobby, corridor, part of a public area or stairway, or an open 

space such as a balcony or similar place, which is sufficiently protected (or remote) from any fire risk 

and provided with its own means of escape and a means of communication. 

 

Normal lifts may be considered suitable for fire evacuation purposes, subject to an adequate fire risk 

assessment and development of a suitable fire safety strategy by a competent person. 

 

Enough escape routes should always be available for use by disabled people. This does not mean 

that every exit will need to be adapted. Staff should be aware of routes suitable for disabled people 

so that they can direct and help people accordingly. 

 
General points for Consideration 

 

Doors 

 

To clarify the width of a doorway on the means of escape routes is the clear width measured 

between the leaves (or, if a single door, the leaf and the frame or doorstop) of the doors when 

open at right angles to the frame. Door hardware may be ignored if the door opens more than 90 

degrees to the frame. Doorways should be not less than 2060mm high except that the height may 

be reduced to 1960mm in existing buildings. Curtains or drapes should never be hung across 

doors or escape routes within any of the licensable areas as this could impede any evacuation. 

 

Double Swing Doors and Doors Across Corridors 

 

Double swing doors, doors across corridors and doors that may cause an obstruction should be fitted 

with safety glass vision panels with zones of visibility between 500mm and 1500mm from the floor. 

Fire resisting safety glass panels should be fitted in fire doors to the same level of fire resistance as 

the door itself. 

 

Thresholds 

 

No door should open immediately over or onto a step. A single step on the line of a doorway is not 

acceptable. A landing at least as wide as the door and at least as long as the width of the door plus 

400mm, should be provided between the door and the first step of any stair. 

 

There should be no upstand or threshold bar across any doorway or escape route, other than a 

chamfered weather bar or threshold seal for sound insulation protruding a maximum of 6mm and 

arranged so as not to cause a trip hazard. 

 
 
 
 
 

page 148



Door fastenings 

 

All exit doors should be free from fastenings when public, entertainers or staff are present or have 

fastenings that may be readily opened in emergency without using both hands or a key to open the 

door. 

 

Note 1:  This does not preclude the use of a key to open the door from the outside. 

Note 2:  Any removable devices, such as locks, bolts, chains or padlocks, used to improve security 

must be removed before the premises are occupied. A door alarm system is preferable to removable 

security devices where possible.   

 

Where there may be more than 60 people, any fastenings on doors should be panic bolts or panic 

latches operated by push bars complying with BS EN 1125. 

 

If a room holds less than 60 people, push pads or lever handles complying with BS EN 179 are 

acceptable. The use of latches operated by lever handles should be avoided in public areas. Round 

knobs should not be used as they could be difficult to operate. 

 

Any door furniture should be fitted between 800mm and 1200mm above floor level and should 

provide visual contrast with the surface of the doors. To avoid confusion push plates should usually 

be fitted for pushing doors and handles to pull doors. 

 

Lighting 

 

The premises should have an adequate supply of both normal and emergency and each system 

should be sufficient to enable the public, performers and staff to see their way to move around the 

premises safely and to escape from the premises.  

 

Adequate emergency lighting in addition to sufficient normal lighting should be provided so that all 

parts of the premises including toilets and internal and external exit routes leading to the street are 

illuminated. All emergency lighting should comply with BS 5266: Parts, 1, 7 & 8.  

 

Both supplies of lighting should be independently capable of providing the recommended minimum 

illuminance. However, whilst both normal and emergency supplies are functioning properly, either or 

both supplies may operate at a reduced level so long as the minimum recommended illuminance is 

provided. In the event of the failure of either supply the remaining supply should be automatically 

restored to full illuminance. 

 

The lighting and emergency lighting circuits should not normally be switched off by the operation of 

any RCD. The lighting should be operated by an automatic switching system or remain on when the 

public are present. Light switches should preferably not be installed in public areas such as the event 

space but if so installed should be key-operated or otherwise protected from unauthorised operation.   

 

Maintained emergency lighting (that is operating whenever the premises are occupied) should be 

installed where the normal lighting may be dimmed. Where non-maintained emergency lighting is 

installed, it should come into operation on the failure of the local normal lighting circuit forming part of 

the normal lighting.  

  

Lighting fittings should be fixed at least 2100mm above floor level or pitch line of stairs. Suspended 

fittings, other than small lamp pendants, should be provided with suitable means of suspension 

page 149



independent of the electric cable. Heavy fittings should be rigidly fixed or be provided with two non-

combustible independent means of suspension. 

 
Communication 

 

Adequate communication is needed throughout the premises. Where noise levels are loud 

communications systems such as a public address system may be needed especially in emergency 

as there are emergencies where the fire system does not suffice. Consideration should be given to 

the type and style of operation proposed and the type of entertainment available as this will help 

inform any decisions made regarding communication systems. In some circumstances a duty 

manager, equipped with two-way communication with designated members of staff is sufficient.    

 
Exit Signage 
 
All exit routes should be suitably signed, with particular attention drawn to the need for signage 
throughout the large ground floor space. 
 
Protected Exit Routes 
 
All protected exit routes should be provided with 30 minutes fire separation to other parts of the 
premises or as detailed in the Fire Strategy. 
 
All Fire doors protecting escape routes should be provided with intumescent strips and smoke seals 
and all fire doors will comply with the relevant provisions of Table B1 of ADB. 
 
Every escape route (other than those in ordinary use) should be marked by emergency exit signs 
complying with BS 5499: Part 1 and these will be located in accordance with the recommendations of 
BS 5499: Part 4 
 
In addition, the normal works condition and plans change condition should be attached to the 
application. 
 
The above list is not exhaustive but details some of the key considerations for the proposed use of 
the space. It is also advised that a final clearance inspection should take place prior to any use under 
the licence. 
 
Proposed Hours of Operation. 
 
Supply of Alcohol ‘On’ and ‘Off’ the premises. 
Monday to Saturday 10.00 to 00.00 hours 
Sunday 10.00 to 23.30 hours 
Sunday before a Bank Holiday Monday 10.00 to 00.00 hours 
New Year’s Eve to 01.00 hours. 
 
 
 
Late Night Refreshment ‘Indoors’ 
Monday to Saturday 23.00 to 00.00 hours 
Sunday 23.00 to 23.30 hours 
Sunday before a Bank Holiday Monday 23.00 to 00.00 hours 
New Year’s Eve to 01.00 hours 
 
Opening hours 
Monday to Saturday 10.00 to 00.30 hours 
Sunday to 10.00 to 00.00 hours 
Sunday before a Bank Holiday Monday 10.00 to 00.30 hours 

page 150



New Year’s Eve to 01.30 hours 
 
Licensing Policy: 
The premises are not located within any cumulative impact or special consideration zone therefore 
policy RTN1 and PB1 would apply in part, but there is no specific policy regarding proprietary 
members clubs. 
 
This policy recognise that applications must demonstrate that the proposals meet the relevant criteria 
in policies CD1, PS1, PN1 and CH1 with regard to operational conditions. Such conditions must also 
address the later opening hours especially with regard to PN1 and CD1. 
 
There is no policy requirement to demonstrate that the premises will add to cumulative impact in the 
area. 
 
The proposed hours of operation are outside the core hours policy but generally replicate those 
hours for a restaurant style operation. Consideration should be had for any residents in the area who 
may be impacted by the operation, the proposed capacity of the premises, waste management and 
the times customers and staff will be leaving the premises. 
 
It is advised that both a dispersal policy and smoking policy are drawn up to show that the premises 
have arrangements in place to minimise nuisance from the activities. 
 
Public Toilet Provision 
 
The proposed number of toilets for both male and female as shown on the plans provided are 
sufficient for a maximum capacity of 800 persons provided that separate toilets/changing facilities are 
provided for staff. 
It is advised and supported by guidance that persons should not have to travel more than one floor to 
access toilet facilities. Therefore, both male and female toilets should be provided to the first floor. It 
is advised that to support the proposed capacity 4 WC’s are provided per sex. 
 
Nuisance 
A check on complaints against licensed premises in the locality. 
 
Zuma, 5 Raphael Street, SW7. No complaints in last 5 years regarding nuisance. Historic complaints 
concerning deliveries to yard area. 
 
Caffe Concerto, 78 Brompton Road, SW3. Single complaint this year regarding external tables and 
chairs, investigated and not substantiated. 
 
Signor Sassi, 13-14 Knightsbridge Green, SW1 No recent complaints. 
 
Licensing Position: 
 
Conditions proposed to address the licensing objectives. 
 

• The supply of alcohol to the basement dining rooms shall be ancillary to the provision of 

substantial food. 

 

• The supply of alcohol to the first-floor lounge shall not be sold or supplied otherwise than to 

either: 

i) persons admitted to the premises by prior invitation to a bona fide private function held at the 
premises; 
ii) specifically invited guests of the proprietor listed by name at the reception prior to admission; 
iii) members and their bona fide guests, such members having paid an annual fee of at least £500, 

page 151



a list of all members to be held at reception for inspection by the relevant authorities; no person 
shall be admitted to the membership of the premises without an interval of at least 48 hours 
between application and acceptance to membership. 
iv) persons who are seated taking a substantial table meal there and for consumption by such a 
person as ancillary to their meal. 
 

• A list of the names and addresses of members of the members lounge shall be kept on the 

premises at all times together with a book showing the names and dates of attendance of any 

guests introduced by members. Both the list and the book shall be produced on demand for 

inspection by the police or an authorised officer of the Council. 

 

• The supply of alcohol to the ground floor restaurant hatched shall only be to persons seated 

and by waiter/waitress service. 

 

• Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available 

in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises. 

 

• All sales of alcohol for consumption ‘Off’ the premises shall be in sealed containers only and 

shall not be consumed on the premises. 

 

• There shall be no sales of alcohol for consumption ‘Off’ the premises after 23.00 hours except 

for resealed part consumed bottles of wine. 

 

• The requirement and number of SIA door supervisors shall be risk assessed by the premises 

licence holder, such risk assessment shall be kept at the premises for a minimum of 21 days 

following the occasion. 

 

• The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum 

requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be 

covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The 

CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and 

during all times when customers remain on the premises and will include the external area 

immediately outside the premises entrance. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 

period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available 

immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day 

period. 

 

• A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system 

shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open. This staff member must be 

able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data 

with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 

• A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 

acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as 

driving licence, military ID card, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.  

page 152



 

• Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises at ground floor level, 

e.g. to smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 

 

• An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an authorised 

officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the following: 

 

(a) all crimes reported to the venue 

(b) all ejections of patrons 

(c) any complaints received regarding crime and disorder 

(d) any incidents of disorder 

(e) any faults in the CCTV system 

(f) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 

(g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
 

• No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall emanate 

from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the premises which 

gives rise to a nuisance. 

 

• The external doors shall be kept closed after 21.00 hours, or at any time when regulated 

entertainment takes place, except for the immediate access and egress of persons. 

 

• The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape provisions, 

emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and mechanical equipment, shall at 

all material times be maintained in good condition and full working order. 

 

• The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free of trip 

hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the plans 

provided. 

 

• All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of a key, 

code, card or similar means. 

 

• All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held open other than 

by an approved device. 

 

• Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency safety signs or 

emergency equipment. 

 

• All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 minutes 

before the scheduled collection times. 

 

• No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or placed 

in outside areas between 23.00 hours and 08.00 hours on the following day. 

page 153



 

• No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall take 

place between 23.00 and 08.00 hours on the following day. 

 

• No licensable activities shall take place until the premises has been assessed as satisfactory 

by the Environmental Health Consultation Team at which time this condition shall be removed 

from the Licence by the licensing authority. 

 

• No licensable activities shall take at the premises until the capacity of the premises has been 

determined by the Environmental Health Consultation Team and the licensing authority has 

replaced this condition on the licence with a condition detailing the capacity so determined. 

 

• Before the premises open to the public, the plans as deposited will be checked by the 

Environmental Health Consultation Team to ensure they are an accurate reflection of the 

premises constructed. Where the premises layout has changed during the course of 

construction new plans shall be provided to the Environmental Health Consultation Team and 

the Licensing Authority. 

 
 
To consider if concerns are raised. 
 

• After 21.00 hours a personal licence holder shall be on duty on the premises. 

• The supply of alcohol on the ground floor shall only be to a person seated taking a substantial 

table meal there and for consumption by such a person as ancillary to their meal. 

• A direct telephone number for the duty manager at the premises shall be publicly available at 

all times the premises is open. This telephone number is to be made available to residents 

and businesses in the vicinity. 

 
 
Conclusion 
 
The new application should reflect the overall operation of the premises supported by model and 
unique conditions to address the licensing objectives and policy concerns. Any smoking area should 
be positioned so as not to impact on any adjacent premises or residential amenity. The licensing 
objectives of Public Safety, Prevention of Public Nuisance and Crime and Disorder are addressed 
with model conditions and these should satisfy the responsible authorities. Additional conditions 
might be proposed to address any concerns from residents. 
 
As part of the application process it is advised that the other responsible authorities will also need to 
assess the proposals and may wish to make additional comments. 
 

Please note that any advice given will not guarantee that your application will be granted by 

the Licensing Service and the Environmental Health Consultation Team may still choose to 

make a representation to the application submitted.  

 

page 154



page 155



page 156



page 157



Sheesh Essex
Sheesh’s current home is Ye Olde Kings Head - the second oldest public house in England and immortalized in Charles Dickens’ novel, 'Barnaby Rudge' as the Maypole Inn.

Steeped in history, the famous landmark building was the notorious watering hole of London’s merchants and bankers who visited whilst staying at their Essex country retreats.

The interior of the 20,000 square foot property is dramatic with colossal chandeliers adorning the dining room. A collection of taxidermy, bold artwork and suits of armour
add a touch of irony and eccentricity.

P O S I T I O N I N G

page 158



page 159



page 160



page 161



page 162



page 163



page 164



page 165



page 166



page 167



page 168



page 169



page 170



page 171



Indicative Sketch  GF Restaurant 

P O S I T I O N I N G

page 172



Indicative Sketch  First Floor Lounge

P O S I T I O N I N G

page 173



page 174



page 175



page 176



page 177



page 178



page 179



page 180



page 181



page 182



Premises History         Appendix 4 
 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of Application 

 
Application date 

 
Decision 

21/05285/PREAPM Request for Pre-
application advice 

13.02.2014 N/A 

 
There is no licence or appeal history for the premises.

page 183



 
 

Appendix 5 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 

page 184



less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 

page 185



 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
9.  All persons guarding premises against unauthorised access or occupation or against 

outbreaks of disorder or against damage (door supervisors) must be licensed by the 
Security Industry Authority. 
 

 

page 186



Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
  
10.  The supply of alcohol to the basement dining rooms shall be ancillary to the provision of 

substantial food.  
 
11.  The supply of alcohol to the first-floor lounge bar shall not be sold or supplied otherwise 

than to either:  

i) members and their bona fide guests, such members having paid an annual fee of at 
least £500, a list of all members to be held at reception for inspection by the relevant 
authorities; no person shall be admitted to the membership of the premises without an 
interval of at least 48 hours between application and acceptance to membership.  

ii) Persons waiting to dine or who have dined.  
 

A list of the names and addresses of members of the members lounge shall be kept on 
the premises at all times together with a book showing the names and dates of 
attendance of any guests introduced by members. Both the list and the book shall be 
produced on demand for inspection by the police or an authorised officer of the Council.  

 proposes an alternative wording to condition 11 as follows: 

11. The supply of alcohol to the first-floor lounge bar shall not be sold or supplied otherwise 
than to either: 
 
i) members and their bona fide guests (limited to 5 guests), such members having paid 
an annual fee of at least £500, a list of all members to be held at reception for inspection 
by the relevant authorities; no person shall be admitted to the membership of the 
premises without an interval of at least 48 hours between application and acceptance to 
membership. 
 
ii) Persons waiting to dine or who have dined. 

12.  The ground floor restaurant hatched shall only operate as a restaurant in which,  
i. Customers are shown to their table,  
ii. Where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only, 
iii. Which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on 

the premises, and are served and consumed at the table, 
iv. Which do not provide any takeaway service of food or drink for immediate 

consumption off the premises, 
v. Where alcohol shall not sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by 

persons who are seated and bona fide taking substantial table meals, and 
provided always that the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to 
taking such meals. 
 
Notwithstanding this condition, customers are permitted to purchase and take 
from the premises alcohol for consumption ‘off’ the premises in accordance with 
conditions 13. 
 

13.  Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be 
available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 
on the premises.  

 
14.  There shall be no off-sales of alcohol except for resealed part consumed bottles 

purchased on the premises and/or alcohol packaged to take away from the premises 
with a substantial meal (takeaway) and which is not intended for immediate consumption 
off the premises.  

page 187



15.  Deliveroo, Uber or any similar company which operates a food collection service shall 
not be permitted to collect takeaway meals from the premises and orders by such 
company shall not be accepted by the premises licence holder.  

 
16. A copy of the premises Operational & Dispersal Policy shall be made available at the 

premises for inspection by a Police Officer and / or an authorised officer of Westminster 
City Council. 

 
17.  The requirement and number of SIA door supervisors shall be risk assessed by the 

premises licence holder, such risk assessment shall be kept at the premises for a 
minimum of 21 days following the occasion.  

 
18.  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises and 
will include the external area immediately outside the premises entrance. All recordings 
shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of 
recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised 
officer throughout the preceding 31 day period.  

 
19.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.  

 
20.  A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 scheme shall be operated at the premises where the 

only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, 
such as driving licence, military ID card, passport or proof of age card with the PASS 
Hologram.  

 
21.  Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises at ground floor 

level, e.g. to smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 
 

 proposes an alternative wording to condition 21 as follows:  
 

21. Patrons or staff permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises at ground 
floor level or who remain in the vicinity of the premises for such temporary duration, e.g. 
to smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 

 
22.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the following:  
 

(a) all crimes reported to the venue  
(b) all ejections of patrons  
(c) any complaints received regarding crime and disorder  
(d) any incidents of disorder  
(e) any faults in the CCTV system  
(f) any refusal of the sale of alcohol  
(g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
(h) residential complaints  
 

page 188



23.  No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 
emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance.  

 
 proposes an alternative wording to condition 23 as follows: 

 
23.  No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which: 
 
(a) give rise to a nuisance; 
(b) at the nearest façade of the nearest noise sensitive property shall not exceed 10 dB 
below the minimum external background noise during the operating period; and 
(c) at the nearest façade of the nearest noise sensitive property, the noise generated 
within each octave band level should not exceed 5 dB below the minimum external 
background noise level expressed in any of the individual octave band levels. 

 
24.  The external doors shall be kept closed after 21.00 hours, or at any time when regulated 

entertainment takes place, except for the immediate access and egress of persons. 
 

 proposes an alternative wording to condition 24 as follows:  
 

24. The external doors and windows shall be kept closed after 21.00 hours, or at any time 
when regulated entertainment takes place, except for the immediate access and egress 
of persons. 

 
25.  The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape provisions, 

emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and mechanical equipment, 
shall at all material times be maintained in good condition and full working order.  

 
26.  The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free 

of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the 
plans provided.  

 
27.  All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of a key, 

code, card or similar means.  
 
28.  All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held open other 

than by an approved device.  
 
29.  Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency safety signs 

or emergency equipment.  
 
30. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 

minutes before the scheduled collection times.  
 
31.  No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or 

placed in outside areas between 23.00 hours and 08.00 hours on the following day.  
 

 proposes an alternative wording to condition 31 as follows: 
 

31. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or 
placed in outside areas between 19.00 hours and 08.00 hours on the following day. 

 
32.  No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall 

take place between 23.00 and 08.00 hours on the following day.  
 

page 189



33. No deliveries to the premises shall take place between 23:00 and 08:00 hours on the 
following day. 

 
34. No application shall be made for a tables and chairs licence. 
 
35.  No licensable activities shall take place until the premises has been assessed as 

satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team at which time this condition 
shall be removed from the Licence by the licensing authority.  

 
36.  No licensable activities shall take at the premises until the capacity of the premises has 

been determined by the Environmental Health Consultation Team and the licensing 
authority has replaced this condition on the licence with a condition detailing the capacity 
so determined.  

 
37.  Before the premises open to the public, the plans as deposited will be checked by the 

Environmental Health Consultation Team to ensure they are an accurate reflection of the 
premises constructed. Where the premises layout has changed during the course of 
construction new plans shall be provided to the Environmental Health Consultation 
Team and the Licensing Authority.  

 
Conditions proposed by  
 
38.  A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly available at 

all times the premises are open. This telephone number is to be made available to 
residents and businesses in the vicinity. 

 
39.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 

needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 
 
40.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons 

to respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly. 
 
41.  Measures shall be taken to minimise and prevent noise breakout from the premises, 

including but not limited to: use of acoustic enclosures; use of noise attenuators and 
acoustic screens as required; use of vibration insulators; electronic sound limiters on 
amplification systems; and installation of an acoustic lobby with inner and outer acoustic 
doors designed to prevent both sets of doors being opened at the same. 

 
42.  Measures shall be taken to ensure that plant, machinery and equipment is maintained to 

prevent noise levels from them increasing. 
 
43.  Clear signage and communication to persons entering and exiting the premises shall be 

implemented to prevent and control noise and crowding of persons outside the 
premises. 

 
44.  Measures shall be implemented to control and prevent queuing outside the premises, 

ensure the quiet entering and exiting of the premises by all persons and to ensure good 
behaviour to minimise any disturbance outside and within the Premises. 

 
45.  Arrangements shall be made for dedicated taxi or licensed minicabs to collect and to 

ensure that all private vehicles use designated dropping off/picking up and waiting points 
as agreed with the Council and away from Lancelot Place. 

 
46.  Measures managing transport arrangements to and from the premises (including staff or 

patron parking) shall be implemented to minimise any disturbance. 
 

page 190



47.  Deliveries, collections and operational servicing shall only be carried out between 07.00 
and 19.00, except where access at other times is unavoidable and specific procedures 
are in place to limit disturbance. 

 
48.  Drivers shall be encouraged to switch off engine during deliveries, collections and 

servicing, and to minimise other noise caused by their activities. 
 
49.  The maximum number of persons permitted on the premises (excluding staff) shall not 

exceed: [250]. NB: there needs to be an agreed max limit of person on the Premises at 
any time and a max limit for each floor based on seating capacity as opposed to vertical 
drinking space. 

 
50.  No outside seating areas will be permitted any time. 
 
51.  Flashing or particularly bright lights on or outside the premises shall not cause a 

nuisance to nearby properties, save insofar as they are necessary for the prevention of 
crime. 

 
52.  Measures to prevent illegal drugs being brought onto the premises and measures 

to discourage the use of illegal drugs. 
 
 
 

page 191



Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity    Appendix 6 
 

 
Resident count: 143 
 

Licensed premises within 75 metres of 70 Brompton Road, London, SW3 1ER 

Licence Number Trading Name Address Premises Type Time Period 

16/12708/LIPDPS 
Richoux 
Restaurant 

86 Brompton 
Road 
London SW3 
1ER Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 

16/02029/LIPV Caffe Concerto 

78 Brompton 
Road 
London SW3 
1ER Cafe 

Sunday; 08:00 
- 22:30 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
08:00 - 23:30 

 
 
 
 
 

page 192


	Agenda
	1. Connaught House, 1-3 Mount Street, W1K 3NB
	1-3 Mount Street_LSC Report.pdf
	05 Planning Permission.pdf
	09 External Seating Planning Permission.pdf
	04 Letter to Residents.pdf
	03 Emails re resident meeting.pdf

	2. Sheesh, 70 Brompton Road, SW3 1ER



